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1. PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 Chairperson’s foreword
The past financial year has seen the Commission grow in various aspects as it navigated through the COVID-19
pandemic and its set Regulations. The year was further seized with unprecedented emergency events that required
the Commission to be responsive, given its constitutional mandate to protect, promote and monitor the observance
of human rights in the country. Planned activities for the financial year had to further accommodate these
responsive initiatives and this showed the resilience of the institution and its vital role in ensuring accountability

and mainstreaming human rights within our society.

The Commission has in the past financial year executed its promotion mandate by responding to the July Unrest
through an Imbizo. This was a successful initiative that allowed a platform for the public and all other stakeholders
to discuss the state of human rights and challenges in the country, that have led to such an unrest. This initiative
was reinforced through the Commission’s protection mandate as an Investigative Hearing was held in Kwa-Zulu
Natal and Gauteng, with the purpose of fact finding and ensuring accountability for the unrest. The glaring human
rights violations that occurred during the unrest and the aftermath thereof required a response with both human

and financial resources, and the Commission ensured that its response was not limited by the lack of either.

The Commission operated within an unprecedented context of remote work and social distancing, which had an
impact on the execution of its promotion mandate that traditionally required in-person interaction with communities
our Provincial offices serve. This context also came as an opportunity for the Commission to utilise its strengths
through its Communications Unit and managed to ensure its sustained reach through various media platforms and
local radio stations within provinces. Adjustment to the new context of operations has certainly raised the visibility

and voice of the Commission and has further contributed to the increased demand for our interventions.

The general budget constraints, given the dire economic downturn following the COVID-19 pandemic have not
only highlighted the resource challenges of the Commission, but further coincided with the growing levels of poverty
and inequality within our country. This reflection provided a renewed recognition that to ensure the successful
implementation of our mandate and realisation of our vision of transforming South Africa, will require established

collaborative relations with strategic stakeholders, including grassroot community organisations.

In the medium to long term, the Commission will take forward the outcomes of the Investigative Hearing into the
July Unrest in ensuring that similar events do not reoccur. This will require a focus towards accountability
mechanisms in curbing the widespread levels of corruption that have a direct impact on the realisation of human
rights. This will further require the Commission to strengthen its monitoring mandate and ensure that its
recommendations are implemented accordingly. The Commission will take forward an initiative in ensuring social

cohesion and harmony within our societies to close the gap in growing divisions.




A word of welcome must be extended to the two Commissioners who joined the Commission in the financial year.
Their apt uptake to their respective focal area work is met with appreciation as it has expanded the capacity within
the Commissioners programme as we collectively strive towards the vision of a culture of human rights. A further
word of appreciation is extended to all government departments and stakeholders who responded cooperatively
to the call by the Commission during its investigative hearings and willingly assisted the work of the Commission.
These cooperative engagements ensure the seamless implementation of the Constitutional mandate vested in the

Commission.

For the financial year under review, the Commission received another unqualified audit, albeit with findings and
challenges in areas of non-financial performance information. This was achieved despite resource constraints and
the massive human rights demands. This must be acknowledged as the hard work and dedication of

Commissioners and the Secretariat staff.

On behalf of the Commissioners, | declare our continued and unwavering commitment to a Commission that is

impactful in the delivery of the human rights, within its constitutional mandate.

Advocate Bongani Majola

Chairperson




1.2 Report of the Accounting Officer
In reflecting on the financial year, the Commission has strived to attain all the targets and plans within its
Operational and Annual Performance Plan. This came with highlights that are worth reflecting upon, given the new
approach to remote work and growing demand for the Commission’s intervention in the wake of a pandemic. The
highlights were certainly not without challenges as the personnel of the Commission and the institution, in its

entirety, had to adjust to the new normal.

The Commission had set out targets within its approved plans at the beginning of the financial year. However,
some of the plans were digressed upon following the unrest that broke out in both KwaZulu-Natal and Gauteng in
July 2021. This unprecedented event required the intervention of the Commission given the vast impact it had. The
first port of call for the Commission was to ensure that the nation is in dialogue around what the core issues were
that led to such unpleasant and costly outcomes. An Imbizo was organised by the Commission, calling for all
members of society to join in conversation. It was anticipated that the discussions would enable the Commission
to carve a response plan that would assist the country in effectively dealing with the aftermath of the unrest. Some
of the key trends from the discussions were the underlying tensions created by growing margins of inequality due
to poverty and unemployment in the country. The looting and destruction of businesses was reflective of a country
where the rule of law stood in its balances. The rampant levels of corruption allowed for such lawless behaviour,
which is growing to be an unfortunate norm in the country. A common input by all participants was that there is a
need to assess the effectiveness of the security structures in South Africa to adequately ensure safety for all. Social

cohesion was an outcome to be taken forward while identifying the root causes and a way forward.

The Imbizo culminated into one of the biggest hearings the Commission has held thus far. Unrest Hearings were
held in both affected provinces, led by the respective provincial managers and a panel composed of
Commissioners. This was a resource intensive process that saw the Commission moving some of its personnel to
deal with the evidence that was being brought forth by members of the public. The Hearings also gave an
opportunity to not only grow the specialisation of internal capacity of the Commission, but also highlighted some
of the key powers and obligations as set out in the Constitution and the South African Human Rights Commission
Act. Key stakeholders from across business and government bodies adhered to the call in assisting the
Commission to unpack the underlying cause of the unrest. A report from the Hearings is yet to be finalised and
should provide recommendations that will assist in curtailing similar events in future. Much is yet to be done to
address the systemic root causes and this was within the focus of the Commission during the financial year and

will continue.

At the wake of the release of the report by the Judicial Commission of Inquiry into Allegations of State Capture,
Corruption and Fraud in the Public Sector including Organs of State (Zondo Commission), the Commission was
already focused on addressing the impact of corruption on human rights. This is one of its key strategic priority
areas for the coming years. We saw collaborative efforts within the Forum for Institutions Supporting Democracy

(FISD) when a seminar was held with the objective of giving effect to the founding values of the country’s
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democracy: human dignity, the achievement of equality, and the advancement of human rights. The Commission
carried forward its discussions from early engagements around the impact of corruption on human rights, with a
specific focus on whistle-blowers. Submissions were made in this regard to note the glaring weaknesses in the
legal framework protecting whistle-blowers, and the need for the current legal framework to be comprehensively
overhauled. This was also a finding echoed within the Zondo Commission report. A follow up Summit on the
protection of whistle-blowers was hosted by the Commission with local and international stakeholders. The focus
of the Summit was to allow for an assessment of the current legal and institutional framework and to allow for
comparative analysis of other jurisdictions, to better inform the proposals to be made for any amendments of the

current framework.

The ripple effect of corruption and its impact on the realisation of human rights has become a glaring thread within
the work of the Commission, especially in instances where public funds are mismanaged. Provincial hearings were
held in Mpumalanga and North West focusing on service delivery in relation to access to water and sanitation
within communities and the latter in schools. There was work done around monitoring the provision of water and
sanitation in schools during Covid-19 restrictions that further necessitated such amenities. Schools’ infrastructure
was a focus in North West, and this highlighted the dire situations and non-compliance of most schools to the
Minimum Uniform Norms and Standards for Public School Infrastructure, which is not conducive to learning. The
Commission will continue to address these issues and delays in the realisation of human rights in the most
vulnerable communities through its work focusing on local government, pro-human rights budgeting, and anti-

corruption initiatives.

The work on equality remained a key focus for the Commission in the year and some of the key highlights included
the Judgment by the Constitutional Court in the Qwelane v South African Human Rights Commission and Another
matter. This was a matter the Commission was involved in over several years and had an impact of holding other
similar matters in abeyance, pending the judgment that sought to address section 10 of the Promotion of Equality
and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act (PEPUDA). This matter was precedent setting and allowed for wider
discussions and interpretation of future equality matters and those currently within the Commission’s complaints
system. Within the equality focal area, it is worth mentioning the work that was done through the Gauteng provincial
office that held an inquiry, investigating racism in the advertising industry in South Africa. This was following various
advertisements that were racially prejudicial and caused public outrage and were taken on as own initiatives and
complaints brought to the Commission. The report is yet to be released and is anticipated to contribute towards
some form of social cohesion that acknowledges the diverse make-up of the country, while allowing for freedom
of speech and expression. The Commission has also contributed towards international discussions and efforts on
the right to equality focusing on Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity Expression (SOGIE) along with fellow
national human rights institutions in the Network of African National Human Rights Institutions (NANHRI). These

were knowledge exchange visits that allowed the Commission to speak on its effectiveness towards inclusion of




SOGIE matters within its programming. Purpose was for the learning of other NHRIs operating in climates that are

still grappling with these topics within a human rights space.

In addition, other international initiatives included the Commission hosting workshops that allowed for the
preparation of the Universal Periodic Review (UPR). Noting that South Africa's human rights record was reviewed
for the third time during the UPR Working group session in May 2017, South Africa will be reviewed as part of the
fourth cycle of the UPR in November 2022, during the 41st session of the UPR Working Group. The webinar was
hosted to enable Civil Society Organisations (CSOs) and the Commission to acquire the knowledge, methodology
and tools needed to write a UPR report. This was a great initiative as it allowed for the Commission to engage with

CSOs on their vital role within the UPR mechanism.

Lastly on the international front, the Commission was chosen through the NANHRI to represent Africa at the Global
Alliance of National Human Rights Institutions (GANHRI) Subcommittee on Accreditation (SCA). This is a process
where NHRIs are periodically evaluated with reference to the Paris Principles, in ensuring that they apply these
Principles in their national contexts, ultimately helping NHRIs to ensure their independence, pluralism,
effectiveness, and accountability. The Commission holds an A status — Fully compliant with Paris Principles - and

remains resolute to maintain such status in its upcoming accreditation.

The Commission remains the Secretariat for the National Preventative Mechanism (NPM) along with other key
stakeholders. Much of the year focused on the continued monitoring of places of detention or places of deprivation
of liberty. The NPM in collaboration with other stakeholders hosted its Annual Human Rights and Policing Lecture
that focused on core challenges within detention facilities. The lecture addressed some key challenges with state
patients being held in detention centres while dealing with mental health issues. The outcome was an exchange
of ideas that sought to set out relevant key actors, and to assist the criminal justice system actors in creating a
response model for dealing with such detainees. NPM will continue to follow up through its monitoring efforts to

ensure coordination between all stakeholders.

The Commission successfully hosted the final rounds of the National Schools Moot Court Competition. This is an
annual flagship event for the Commission as its objective is to ensure human rights education. It is also an
opportunity to promote inclusive participation by all schools despite other challenges that have been flagged
previously on schools that fall short of the norms and standards set out for conducive learning. There is certainly
a digital divide that was clear throughout the pandemic, with certain schools being able to facilitate remote learning,
while others did not have the resources to do so. The Commission had to ensure the equal participation of all

schools virtually.

In this financial year, the Commission’s media coverage and profile certainly increased due to the number of events
and hearings that were undertaken. The Commission released hundreds of media outputs including statements,

opinion pieces, newsletters, and press briefings. The Commission’s online and social media activities consisted of




items published on the SAHRC website, Facebook and Twitter posts as well as YouTube videos. This has indeed
provided the Commission with an opportunity to widen its reach, despite the digital divide that persists. Innovative
ways to ensure access to the Commission will require much focus and effort within the coming years, with

adjustments to the new normal.

The highlights certainly came with challenges that the Commission continues to grapple with. Given the vast
mandate the Commission holds and ensuring presence and reach in all provinces, this has certainly come with
major human resource capacity challenges. The Commission still operates under cost containment efforts that
were made in previous financial years, through freezing of certain posts. This results in work being taken on beyond
carrying capacity. This is an area that will require reflection in coming years to ensure efficiency and effectiveness
within the capacity limitations that will persist over the years given the ailing economic challenges the country faces
due to the pandemic and other factors. In addition to the limited human resources capacity, the Commission has
yet to work on finalising its remuneration structure and Regulations that will ensure that it retains its staff
complement and attracts competent candidates to the Commission. Although the Commission spends an average
of 95% of its budgets in recent years, there are still challenges relating to underspending. This can often be
ascribed to the Commission taking on work that is often not costed. Although such work may be necessary in
responding to immediate complaints, it does not reflect so in terms of spending on budget. Proper planning and
streamlining of planned work as a priority is a lesson to be carried from this financial year to the next. Key vacant
positions that are substituted with contract and temporary assistance are challenges that will require resolve to
ensure business continuity in coming financial years. All financial and technology systems within the Commission
will require security and heightened management to avoid losses incurred within this financial year and to ensure

compliance with laws that govern these areas of our work.

The Commission has made all efforts towards improving its audit outcome, more so as it relates to non-financial
performance information. The move of the Head Office to new premises and remote work came as a challenge in
this financial year and made access to performance evidence slightly difficult. Engagements were had with the
Auditor General’s office in finding ways the Commission can better prepare for audits. In addition, more inclusion
of all staff in the operations and performance planning processes to ensure ownership and understanding of targets

has been a priority.

Another hindsight lesson drawn form this year has been the need for the Commission to optimise the role of the
audit committee. Governance structures and roles must be clearly defined in the coming years and quarterly
meetings be utilised effectively to allow for proper stocktaking of progress being made and mitigation strategies for
plans that may not be attained in time. Quarterly reporting must be a central priority to the work done to ensure
effective oversight through the various governance structures. Overall, the Commission managed to achieve 61%
of its targets within the financial year. The low achievement rate can be ascribed to various challenges such as

delays in procurement processes, misinterpretation of the performance indicators, and capacity constraints.




1.3 Statement of Responsibility and Confirmation of the Accuracy of the Annual Report

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the preparation of the institution’s performance information and for
the judgements made in this information.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control designed
to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of performance information.

In my opinion, the performance information fairly reflects the performance of the institution for the financial year
ended 31 March 2022.

Tseliso Thipanyane

Chief Executive Officer
Date: 31 May 2022




1.4 Strategic Overview

The strategic intent of the South African Human Rights Commission (SAHRC / Commission) is informed by various
legislative instruments and policy mechanisms. These include the Constitution and other founding and supporting
legislation.

1.4.1 Vision
Transforming Society. Securing Rights. Restoring Dignity.
1.4.2 Mission

The SAHRC (referred to as the Commission), as an independent National Human Rights Institution (NHRI), is
created to support constitutional democracy through promoting, protecting, and monitoring the attainment of
everyone’s human rights in South Africa without fear, favour or prejudice.

1.4.3 Values

a) Integrity
b) Honesty

c) Respect

d) Objectivity

e) Batho Pele Principles
f) Equality

1.5 Legislative and Other Mandates

The Commission is an independent institution that supports constitutional democracy and is established in terms
of Chapter 9 of the Constitution. Its specific mandate is stipulated in Section 184 of the Constitution. The following
sub-sections broadly describe the parameters of the institution.

1.5.1 Constitutional mandate

The mandate of the Commission, as contained in Section 184 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa,
1996, is as follows:

a) The South African Human Rights Commission (SAHRC) must:
i.  Promote respect for human rights and a culture of human rights;
i.  Promote the protection, development, and attainment of human rights; and
ii. ~ Monitor and assess the observance of human rights in the Republic.

b) The Commission has the necessary powers, as regulated by national legislation, to perform its functions,
including the power:
i.  Toinvestigate and report on the observance of human rights;
ii. To take steps to secure appropriate redress where human rights have been violated;
iii. ~ To carry out research; and
iv. To educate.
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c) Each year, the Commission must require relevant organs of state to provide the Commission with
information on the measures that it has taken towards the realisation of the rights in the Bill of Rights
concerning housing, health care, food, water, social security, education, and the environment.

d) The Commission has additional powers and functions prescribed by other national legislation.

1.5.2 Other legislative and policy mandates

The Commission has additional powers and functions prescribed by specific legislative obligations in terms of the
South African Human Rights Commission Act, the Promotion of Access to Information Act and the Promotion of
Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act.

In this respect, the Commission must:

a) Promote awareness of the statutes;

b) Monitor compliance with the statutes;

c) Report to Parliament in relation to these statutes; and

d) Develop recommendations regarding persisting challenges related to these statutes and any

necessary reform.

South African Human Rights Commission Act, 2013 (No. 40 of 2013) (SAHRCA)
While the Commission fulfils the obligations set out in the SAHRCA, the Commission has suggested several
amendments to bring the SAHRCA in line with the Constitution and subsequent legislation. The Commission awaits
the tabling in Parliament of amendments to the SAHRCA occasioned by the adoption of the Constitution in 1996.

Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 (Act No. 2 of 2000) (PAIA)
The Commission promotes compliance with the PAIA and produces an annual report in this regard, in line with
Sections 83 and 84 of the PAIA. Key prescripts of the PAIA are the development of transparency frameworks and
increasing institutional responsiveness to information requests, with a view to promote access to information.

Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act, 2000 (Act 4 of 2000)

(PEPUDA)
The Commission continues to promote compliance with the PEPUDA. Section 25 (5) (a) of the PEPUDA prescribes
the submission of equality plans to the SAHRC to be dealt with in the prescribed manner, in consultation with the
Commission on Gender Equality. Section 28 (2) requires the SAHRC to assess and report on the extent to which
unfair discrimination on the grounds of race, gender, and disability persists in the Republic, the effects thereof, and
recommendations on how best to address the problems. The Commission continues to assess and report on the
state of equality, notwithstanding that Sections 25 and 28 are not yet in operation.

International and regional instruments
The Commission is actively involved in ensuring the ratification and domestication of international and regional
human rights instruments through, among others, advocacy and policy influence.

At an international level, the Commission is recognised by the United Nations Office of the High Commissioner for
Human Rights as an “A” status National Human Rights Institution (NHRI). The Commission has thus adhered to
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the Paris Principles, which are guiding principles that set out the nature and functioning of NHRIs. These principles
emphasise the independent nature of NHRIs and guide the way they should conduct their work.

Summarised, the principles state, among others, that national human rights institutions should:
a) Monitor any situation of violation of human rights;
b) Be able to advise the Government, Parliament, and any other competent body on specific
violations;
c) Educate and inform on issues of human rights; and
d) Be able to use their quasi-judicial powers where these exist.

The mentioned legislation and policies form the basis on which the Commission plans its strategy and operations.
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1.6 ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
The execution of the Commission’s constitutional and legislative mandate is supported by an organisational

structure constituted at the head office in Johannesburg and supported by provincial offices across all nine
provinces.

Figure 1: Head office structure
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Figure 2: Provincial level generic structure:
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2. PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

2.1 Auditor General’s Report: Predetermined Objectives
The report of the Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA) is hereto attached along with the Annual Financial
Statements. In summary, the AGSA raised material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the performance
information of the selected programme, ‘Promotion of Human Rights’. These findings, for which the AGSA placed

limitations, include:

o The source information, evidence and method of calculation for measuring the planned indicator was not
clearly defined and related systems and processes were not adequate to enable consistent measurement
and reliable reporting of performance against the predetermined indicator definitions.

o The achievement of 23 events was reported against a target of 10 events in the annual performance
report. However, the supporting evidence provided did not agree to the reported achievement and
indicated an achievement of 19 events.

o The AGSA was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the reasons for some of
the variances between the planned target and the achievement reported in the annual performance report.
This was due to the severity of the measurability finding. The AGSA was unable to confirm the reported
reasons for the variances by alternative means, and consequently, could not determine whether any

adjustments were required to the reported reasons for the variances.

2.2 Overview of Departmental Performance

2.21  Service delivery and organisational environment
The service delivery environment in which the Commission operated during the financial year under review was
impacted by major events including the third and fourth waves of the Corona Virus Disease of 2019 (Covid-19) and
civil unrest in Kwa-Zulu and Gauteng. Both these events exacerbated existing human rights challenges and
unearthed underlying social and economic disparities in the country. They required a review of the institutional
strategies and methods for the realisation of strategic plan outcomes and objectives. The Covid-19 necessitated
greater intervention by the Commission to protect the public from reported and potential violations arising from
vulnerabilities caused by the pandemic. Restrictions to movement of people, the lockdown levels and safety
concerns meant that the Commission’s ability to conduct physical monitoring and promotional outreach was

somewhat restricted.

Civil unrest that rocked the country, mostly prevalent in the provinces of KwaZulu-Natal and Gauteng in July 2021,
in which more than 300 people died and economic property was damaged had a direct impact on the work of the

SAHRC. The unrest demonstrated yet the violent character of the South African society, and which the Commission
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is very concerned about. Consequently, institutional objectives were adjusted to focus on understanding and

addressing the causes of the unrest through various engagements including Imbizo and investigative hearings.

While there was growing need for greater intervention due to the increased demand for the Commission’s services
because of these major events, there were always safety concerns, and requisite precautionary measures that
further restricted the already constrained resources capacity. The Commission continued with the remote working
arrangements that placed demands for working equipment such as protective gear and data allowances. The
pandemic had an adverse effect on human capital wellness and productivity in some instances. Staff encountered
periods of sickness and that of family members, including death of employees, relatives and friends. The

Commission has consequently initiated a mental health awareness and wellness programme for employees.

The Commission commenced the financial year with vacancies on some key roles and positions including at the
level of Commissioners, Head of Legal Services, Chief Information Officer, and Eastern Cape Provincial Manager.
The appointment of two Commissioners by Parliament and Presidential approval was concluded in July 2021. For
Secretariat posts that could not be filled during the year under review, the Commission employed temporary staff,
whilst encouraging skills development amongst staff. In addition, capacity building was implemented through
opportunities for acting positions by internal staff. The SAHRC is committed to filling vacancies and has developed

a recruitment drive for the next financial year.

Linked to capacity constraints, the SAHRC does not have a permanent monitoring programme structure in
provinces. Couple this with budgetary constraints and the need to contain personnel and other costs, it has been

difficult for the Commission to review and augment its structure for its monitoring mandate at the provincial level.

2.2.2  Key policy development and legislative changes
With the establishment of the Information Regulator (IR) in terms of the Protection of Personal Information Act,
2013 (Act 4 of 2013), the legislative mandate for the Promotion of Access to Information Act has been transferred
to the IR. The Commission, however, continues to receive and deal with complaints in this regard, as part of its

broader human rights mandate.

2.3 Progress towards Achievement of Institutional Impacts and Outcomes

2.31  Human Rights Priority Areas

In pursuit of its constitutional mandate, the Commission has adopted the following priority human rights focus areas
for the planning period 2020 — 2025:

a) Pro-Human Rights Budgeting
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b) Governance, anti-corruption and human rights

C) Health

d) Education

e) Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation

f) Land and Food Security

g) Environment and Food Security

h) Civil and Political Rights, with specific emphasis on the National Preventive Mechanism (NPM) under the

Optional Protocol to the Convention against Torture and Other Cruel, Inhuman or Degrading Treatment
or Punishment (OPCAT)

23.2

Transversal or Cross-cutting issues for special attention

Within the above identified priority focus areas, the Commission would also give particular attention to transversal
or cross-cutting issues of:

a)

b)

d)

e)

f)

233

Inequality: Promoting practices that improve the state of equality and prevent and eliminate
situations that perpetuate inequalities across all the identified priority focus areas.

Children: Promoting, protecting and monitoring the observance of the rights of children across all
the identified priority focus areas.

Gender: Promoting, protecting and monitoring the observance of gender rights, including the rights
of women, across all the identified priority focus areas.

Disability: Promoting, protecting and monitoring the observance of people with disabilities across all
the identified priority focus areas.

Older Persons: Promoting, protecting and monitoring the observance of the rights of older persons
across all the identified priority focus areas.

Migrants: Promoting, protecting and monitoring the observance of the rights of migrants across all
the identified priority focus areas.

Business and Human Rights: Monitoring the role and practices of business to ensure that they

promote and protect the observance of human rights across all the identified priority areas.

Outcome-oriented goals

The Commission’s planning and internal evaluation exercises resulted in the identification of the following
programme outcomes:
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Figure 2: Programme outcomes

r-A stable institution
with capacity to
effectively delivery on
planned priorities

Programme 2:

*Pro-Human Rights
policies, legislation,
service delivery and
awareness

\ Programme 1:
. . Promotion of
Administration Human Rights
Programme 3: Programme 4:
e Protection of Monitoring of

eAppropriate redress
secured where Human
Rights have been
violated (and
increased public

\_access to justice)

Human Rights

Human Rights

Improved
accountability for
Human Rights

2.4 Institutional Programme Performance Information

241  Summary of Programmes

To deliver on the constitutional mandate, the Commission is structured into four Programmes:

Programme 1: Administration;
Programme 2: Promotion of human rights;

Programme 4: Monitoring of human rights.

)
)

c) Programme 3: Protection of human rights; and
)

These Programmes are further structured into sub-Programmes, commonly known in the Commission as business
units, responsible for operations for the realisation of the programme outcomes. It must be noted that some of the
business units’ work cuts across the core Programmes, 2 to 4, and related strategic objectives. However, for
programme budgeting purposes, these have been allocated to specific Programmes and include the
Commissioners’ Unit, Office of the Chief Operations Officer and the Provincial Offices. It must also be noted that

the Office of the Chief Executive Officer contributes throughout all the four Programmes of the Commission.
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Programme 1: Administration

This Programme consists of the following business units:

Finance:

Finance provides effective and efficient management of the budget to allow for successful achievement of strategic
objectives within limited resources. The unit also facilitates and monitors the management of identified
organisational risks to minimise threats to operations.

Corporate services:

This unit encompasses the functions of human resource management, administration and supply chain
management, and information communications technology. The unit aligns the Commission’s human resource
objectives to its planning processes, enabling recruitment and retention of staff with capacity to support the
achievement of strategic objectives. It establishes and manages integrated supply chain management, asset
management and coordination of all administrative functions of the Commission within defined regulatory
frameworks. It is also responsible for ensuring effective and efficient information communications technology
systems and services.

Internal audit:
The Internal Audit Unit assesses the adequacy and reliability of internal controls and governance processes. It

identifies gaps and recommends corrective action to the controls and processes.

Strategic support and governance:
The unit is responsible for coordination of the processes including institutional strategic planning, performance
monitoring, evaluation, and reporting.

Office of the Chief Executive Officer:

The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) is responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective and efficient
corporate governance framework that ensures management accountability through improved mechanisms for
controlling and directing management activities. It further provides guidance and oversight to the core operations
Programmes.

Programme 2: Promotion of human rights

This Programme consists of the following business units, responsible for the promotional and protective aspects
of the Commission’s mandate:

Commissioners’ programme (Office of the Commissioners):
Commissioners provide leadership and guidance on the professional work of the Commission through facilitating the
South African human rights agenda at international, regional, national, provincial and local levels.

Human rights advocacy and communications:
The human rights’ advocacy and communications unit (Advocom) promotes awareness of human rights and
contributes to the development of a sustainable human rights culture in South Africa. It also serves to promote the
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Commission’s activities and enhance understanding through comprehensive communications and media relations.

Provincial offices
Provincial offices are responsible for carrying out the Commission’s mandate through core operations and actual
implementation at provincial level.

Programme 3: Protection of human rights

Legal Services:
Legal services is responsible for providing quality legal services in the protection of human rights in the Republic
of South Africa through the efficient and effective investigation of complaints of human rights violations, the
provision of quality legal advice and assistance, as well as seeking redress through the courts for victims of human
rights violations.

Office of the Chief Operations Officer:

The Chief Operations Officer (COO) coordinates core operations business units (Legal Services, Research,
Advocacy and Communications, and provincial offices); operational process improvements to ensure efficient
delivery on the core business of the Commission.

Programme 4: Monitoring of human rights

This programme consists of the following business unit, responsible for the institution’s constitutional monitoring
and reporting mandate:

Research:
The unit plans, designs, conducts and manages research on the promotion and protection of human rights aimed
at monitoring, assessing and documenting developments in human rights policy within the Republic.

Some of the programme and business units’ operations contribute across the strategic objectives, hence the
presentation of performance based on its alignment with strategic objectives.

24.2 Outcomes, outputs, output indicators, targets and actual achievements

This section reports on performance achievements against the planned organisational performance targets set for
the 2021-22 financial year. The overview breakdown of target achievement by Programme is presented in Table 2
below. The Commission achieved 63% (that is, 28 of 44) of its annual targets for the period under review. This was
the same level of achievement of the previous financial year.
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Table 2: Summary of overall target achievement

Programme Total no. of No. of Targets No. of Targets Percentage
Targets Fully Achieved Under-Achieved Achievement
Programme 1: Administration 13 5 8 38%
Programme 2: Promotion 15 10 5 66%
Programme 3: Protection 8 5 3 63%
Programme 4: Monitoring 8 7 1 88%
Total 44 27 17 61%

Programme 1: Administration — A stable institution with capacity to effectively deliver on planned
priorities

Table 3: Achievements on a stable institution with capacity to effectively deliver on planned priorities

Performance Indicator Audited Annual Planned Actual Deviation Variance Comment on
Actual Target Achievement from from Variances /
Achievement 2021/2022 2021/22 Planned 2020/21 Corrective
2020/2021 Target for to 2021/22 Measures
2021/22
Outcome: Effective and Efficient delivery on the mandate
Percentage compliance with ~ 100% 80% — 100% 95% Target Decreased None
key legislative requirements  compliance compliance achieved by 5%
1.2 Percentage expenditure 90% 98% - 100% 94.1% Target not Increased Target not met.
against total budget! expenditure achieved. by 4.1% Capex and other

tender related
projects slower
than expected,
mainly due to
procurement
processes, e.g.
new ERP system;
Digitisation.
Actual
expenditure on
some projects
adjusted to the
new financial year
through open
purchase orders.

13 Percentage implementation = 72% 80% - 100% 67.5% Target not Decreased Some treatment

of Risk Treatment Plan Implementation achieved. by 4.5% plan projects

delayed due to
procurement
process
challenges.
Purchase orders
secured for many
of the affected
projects. In
future, most of
the key

1 In addition to expenditure management, quarterly monitoring activities will also focus on the reduction of fruitless and wasteful
expenditure
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1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Audited
Actual
Achievement

Actual
Achievement
2021/22

Deviation
from
Planned
Target for
2021/22

Outcome: Effective and Efficient delivery on the mandate

Annual Planned
Target
2021/2022

Performance Indicator

2020/2021

Percentage implementation  Conditions of  80%- 100% 15% Target not
of Recommendations of Service not implementation achieved.
2020-21 Remuneration developed.
Structures and Conditions
of Service Report
Percentage implementation  94% 80% - 100% 91% Target
of Human Capital implementation achieved.
Management (HCM) Plan of HCM Plan
Percentage implementation ~ 90% 80% - 100% 60% Target not
of Organisational Culture implementation achieved.
Renewal Plan of Culture

Renewal Plan
Percentage implementation  80% 80% - 100% 80% Target
of Information and implementation achieved.
Communications of ICT Plan
Technology (ICT) Plan
Percentage implementation  85% 80% - 100% 84% Target
of Knowledge Management implementation achieved.
(KM) Plan of KM Plan
Percentage implementation  91% 80% - 100% 63% Target not
of Internal Audit Plan implementation achieved.

Variance
from
2020/21
to 2021/22

Target not
achieved.

Decreased
by 3%

Decreased
by 30%

Remained
the same as
last year.

Declined
from 85% to
84%

Decline
from 91% to
63%

Comment on
Variances /
Corrective

Measures

procurement
would be
prioritised to
occur during the
first quarter.
Capacity
constraints and
consequent
priority on other
key processes.
Rescheduling of
work plan
deliverables to
align with
available
resources.
Remuneration
report included in
the risk treatment
plan for attention
in the new
financial year.
None

Capacity
constraints.
Rescheduling of
work plan
deliverables to
align with
available
resources.
Process of
outsourcing
required capacity
in progress.
Organisational
structure redesign
process underway
to review
institutional
capacity.

None

None

Delays in the
provision of
information and
processes at the
various business
unit levels.
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Performance Indicator

Audit Findings:

Percentage resolution of

Audit Findings

Complete Governance
Compliance Monitoring

Report

Complete one (1) Impact
Evaluation Study (IES)

Report

Complete Report on the
sufficiency of the SAHRC
Budget by Sept 2021

Audited Annual Planned Actual
Actual Target
Achievement 2021/2022

Deviation
Achievement from
2021/22 Planned
Target for
2021/22
Outcome: Effective and Efficient delivery on the mandate

2020/2021

49% 80% - 100% 45% Target not
resolution met.
Report Complete Governance Target
completed Governance Report achieved.
Assessment completed.
Report by 31
March 2022
Completed Complete one Report not Target not
Internal (1) IES Report completed. met.
report
evaluating
memorandum
of
understanding
New Indicator ~ Complete Report not Target not
Report on the completed. met.

sufficiency of
the SAHRC
Budget by Sept
2021

Variance
from
2020/21
to 2021/22

Declined by
4%

Report
completed
in 2020.

Report
completed
in 2020.

New
Indicator

Comment on
Variances /
Corrective

Measures

Considering
outsourcing some
of the due
Internal Audit
activities.
Capacity
constraints.
Temporary
capacity sourced.
None

Capacity
constraints and a
focus on other
key processes and
special projects.
Recruitment for
replacement
temporary
personnel
underway.
Appointed service
provider and
developed project
plan for the
evaluation study,
which overlaps
into the new
financial year.

In future,
procurement
processes to be
prioritized during
the first quarter.

Non-
responsiveness to
calls for proposals
and therefore
study could not
be conducted.
Change of
approach to the
project to focus
on strategic
engagements and
submissions
made to key
stakeholders
during the next
financial year.
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Programme 2: Promotion of Human Rights — Pro-Human Rights policy and legislative changes and
service delivery improvements

Table 4: Achievements on Pro-Human Rights policy and legislative changes and service delivery
improvements

Audited Actual
Achievement

Audited Actual
Achievement

Variance Comment on

from

Deviation
from Planned

Annual Planned

Performance
Indicator

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

3

4

5

6

7

i

2020/21

Target 2021/22

2021/22

Target for
2020/21

2020/2021
to
2021/2022

Outcome: Increased reach of the Commission through promotional mechanisms

Percentage
implementation of
Programme of Action
(POA) for
promotional strategic
interventions to
influence policy,
legislation, service
delivery, and create
awareness
Percentage
implementation of
Action Plan based

on 2020-21 Racial
Polarisation
Conference
Resolutions

Percentage
implementation of
Action Plan on 2012
Amman Declaration
and Programme of
Action for
promoting Gender
Equality
Percentage
implementation of
Equality Programme
Toolkit Action Plan.

Percentage
implementation of
Provincial Action
Plans to promote
functionality of
Equality Courts
Percentage
implementation of
Action Plan on
Impact of Covid-19
on children and
youth Conference
Resolutions
Percentage
implementation of
Action Plan on

New
Indicator

New
Indicator

New
Indicator

Equality
Programme
Toolkit and
monitoring
plan
developed.
New
Indicator

New
Indicator

New
Indicator

80% -100%
implementation
of POA for
promotional
strategic
interventions

Implement 80%
- 100% of Action
Plan on Racial
Polarisation
Conference
Resolutions

Implement 80%
- 100% of Action
Plan on Amman
Declaration to
promote
Gender Equality

80% -100%
implementation
of Equality
Programme
Toolkit Action
Plan

80% - 100%
implementation
of Action Plan
to promote
functionality of
Equality Courts
Implement 80%
- 100% of Action
Plan

Implement 80%
- 100% of Action
Plan

100%

Implementation

and exceeded
with additional
interventions

Target not met
as action plan
not
implemented.

Implemented
85%

100%
implemented
and exceeded
with additional
activities by
some provinces
100%

Target not
achieved

Implemented
0% of Action
Plan

Target
exceeded.

Target not
met as action
plan not

implemented.

Target
achieved.

Target
achieved.

Target
achieved.

Target not
achieved.

Target not
achieved.

New
Indicator

New
Indicator

New
Indicator

New Indicator

New
Indicator.

New
Indicator.

New
Indicator

Variances /
Corrective
Measures

Some provinces
exceeded due to
arising human rights
challenges that
required attention.

Dependency on
external
stakeholders for
implementation of
the Action Plan.
Commission would
in future focus on
actions within its
control.

None

Stakeholders’
requests.
None.

Stakeholders’
requests.
None.

. No reported
updates were
available on this
item.

Provincial focus
biased towards the
hosting of the
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Performance
Indicator

Provincial Human
Rights Dialogue
Resolutions

Percentage
implementation of
Action Plan on
National Human
Rights Dialogue
Resolutions

Hosting of Human

Rights Calendar Day

Events

2.10 Percentage
implementation of
Action Plan based
on 2020-21 Anti-
Corruption
Conference
Resolutions

Convening of Annual

Provincial Human
Rights Stakeholder
Engagements

Percentage
implementation of
Action Plan to
empower
Community Human
Rights Champions

Audited Actual

Annual Planned
Target 2021/22

Implement 80%
- 100% of Action
Plan

Host 10 Human

Rights Calendar

Day Events

(9 provincial and
1 national)

80% -100%
implementation
of Action Plan
on Anti-
Corruption
Conference
Resolutions

Convene 9
engagements
by August 2021

Implement 80%
- 100% Action
Plan to
empower
Community
Human Rights
Champions

Audited Actual
Achievement
2021/22

Implemented
100% of Action
Plan

23 human rights
calendar day
events hosted
(21 provincial and
2 national)

Implemented 90%
of action plan on
anti-corruption
conference
resolutions —
through
international
summit held on
the protection of
whistle-blowers.
Convened 1
engagement by
March 2022.

Implemented
98% of the Action
Plan

Deviation Variance
from Planned from
Target for 2020/2021
2020/21 to
2021/2022

Outcome: Increased reach of the Commission through promotional mechanisms

Provincial
offices only
hosted the
dialogues but
did not
develop or
implement
action plans
on resolutions
thereof.

Target New
achieved. Indicator.

Target New
exceeded. Indicator

Target New
achieved. Indicator

Target not New
achieved — Indicator.
less by 8.

However,

convened

altogether 55

provincial

human rights

stakeholder

engagements,

most (54) of

which do not

meet the

indicator

definition.

Target New
achieved. Indicator.

Comment on
Variances /
Corrective

Measures

dialogues, which
has been achieved,
as opposed to the
implementation of
the resolutions.
Workshops
conducted to
sensitise provincial
offices on the focus
of the performance
indicator.

None.

Need for human
rights education.

None.

Workshopping of
business units on
the indicator
descriptions and
requirements.

None
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Performance
Indicator

Percentage

implementation of

Media and
Communications
Plan

Completion of
Human Rights
Advocacy and
Communications
(Advocom) Report
Hosting of Virtual
National Schools
Moot Court
Competition

Audited Actual
Achievement

2020/21

New
Indicator.

1 Report
completed

New
Indicator

Annual Planned
Target 2021/22

Implement 80%
- 100% of Media
&
Communication
s Plan

Complete
Advocom
Report by June
2021

Host Virtual
National
Schools Moot
Court
Competition by
September
2021

Audited Actual
Achievement
2021/22

100%
implemented.

Advocom Report
completed by
June 2021

Competition
hosted by Oct
2021

Deviation
from Planned
Target for
2020/21

Target
achieved.

Target
achieved.

Target not
achieved.

Variance
from
2020/2021
to
2021/2022

Outcome: Increased reach of the Commission through promotional mechanisms

New
Indicator.

None

Target only
met in Oct
2022
instead of
Sep 2022

Comment on
Variances /
Corrective

Measures

None

None

Dependency on
external scheduling,
which is often
concluded after the
approval of the
institutional annual
plan.

26




Programme 3: Protection of Human Rights — Secured appropriate redress where human rights have been
violated and increased public access to justice

Table 5: Achievement on securing appropriate redress where human rights have been violated and

increasing access to justice

Performance Indicator

Audited Actual
Achievement

2020/21

Variance from

2020/21 to
2021/22

Outcome: Redress mechanisms provided where human rights have been violated or threatened

Number of complaints
and enquiries finalised

Number of initiatives
undertaken to address
systemic human rights
violations

Institute 15 strategic
impact litigation matters

Completion of 2020 -
2021 Complaints Trends
Analysis Report by 31
December 2021

Hold 2 National Inquiries

Conduct 18 strategic
stakeholder
engagements for the
protection of human
rights

Full (100%) utilisation of
the CRM System to
promote efficient and
effective complaints
handling

Revised SAHRC
Complaints Handling
Procedures

8891

88 initiatives
undertaken

13 matters

Complete
Report

Annual Audited Actual Deviation
Planned Achievement from Planned
Target 2021/22 Target for
2021/22 2021/22
5000 6623 Target
exceeded
26 initiatives 29 initiatives Target
exceeded
Institute 15 11 matters Target not
strategic instituted. met.
impact
litigation
matters
Complete Report Target
2020-2021 completed achieved
Complaints
Trends
Analysis
Report by 31
December
2021
Hold 2 2 National Target
National Inquiries held achieved.
Inquiries
Conduct 18 24 strategic Target
strategic engagements achieved
stakeholder conducted
engagements
100% 98% utilisation  Target not
utilisation of of CRM System  met.
CRM System
Revised Conduct Target not
SAHRC training on met.
Complaints litigation

Less by 2268

Less by 59

Deceased

from 13 to 11.

None

New Indicator

New indicator

New Indicator

New Indicator

Comment on
Variances /
Corrective

Measures

Target
exceeded due
to arising
human rights
violations that
require
attention.
None.

Target
adjusted
downwards
due to
complexities
and
uncertainties
with litigation.
None

None

Arising or
existing
human rights
challenges
that required
attention.
License
renewed. In
future, to
anticipate and
plan earlier
for license
renewal.
Revised CHP
still awaiting
Commissioner
approval.
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Performance Indicator

Audited Actual

Achievement
2020/21

Annual
Planned
Target

2021/22
Outcome: Redress mechanisms provided where human rights have been violated or threatened

Handling
procedures

Audited Actual
Achievement

2021/22

Deviation
from Planned
Target for

2021/22

Variance from

2020/21 to
2021/22

Programme 4: Monitoring of Human Rights — Improved accountability for Human Rights

Table 6: Achievement on improved accountability for Human Rights

Performance
Indicator

Audited Actual
Achievement
2020/21

Annual Planned
Target 2021/22

Audited Actual
Achievement
2021/22

Outcome: Recommendations and directives made to improve the state of human rights in the country

Review of the Human
Rights Monitoring
and Evaluation
System

Completion of State
of Human Rights in
South Africa (SOHR)
Reports

Completion of
Provincial State of
Human Rights Reports
Completion of
International and
Regional Human
Rights (IRHR) Report

Submission of NPM-
OPCAT Monitoring
Report

Mapping exercise

in progress

1 State of
Human Rights
Report
Completed

9 Reports
completed

1 IRHR Research

Brief completed.

Report submitted.

Implement
80% - 100% of
Action Plan
from Children’s
Rights Mapping
Exercise

Completion of
SOHR by 31
March 2022

Complete 9
Reports (1 per
province)
Complete
International
and Regional
Human Rights
(IRHR) Report
by 31 March
2022

Submit NPM-
OPCAT
Monitoring

Implemented
85% of the
monitoring
action plans,
including the
monitoring of
children’s
rights,
schools,
vaccination
roll out, NPM,
and disability.
Completed
report on
children’s rights
mapping
exercise during
previous
quarter.
Report
completed.

9 Reports
Completed

1 Report
completed.

Report
submitted by
Feb 2022.

Deviation Variance
from Planned from
Target for 2020/21 to
2021/22 2021/22
Target Target not
achieved. achieved in
previous
financial year.
Target None.
achieved.
Target None.
achieved.
Target None.
achieved.
Target not None
achieved.

Comment on
Variances /
Corrective

Measures

Comment on
Variances /
Corrective

Measures

None.

None.

None.

None.

NPM-OPCAT
Annual
Monitoring
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4.7

Performance
Indicator

Audited Actual
Achievement
2020/21

Annual Planned
Target 2021/22

Audited Actual
Achievement
2021/22

Deviation
from Planned
Target for
2021/22

Variance
from
2020/21 to
2021/22

Outcome: Recommendations and directives made to improve the state of human rights in the country

Percentage
submission of
identified NHRI
Reports

Percentage
submission on
identified legislation
by deadline

Submission of PAIA
Annual Report to
Parliament

100 %
submission made
by deadline.

100%
submissions
made by
deadline.

PAIA Report
completed and
submitted to
Parliament on
30 Nov 2020

Report by Sept
2021

Submit 100% of
identified NHRI
Submissions by
deadline
Submit 100% of
identified
legislative
submissions by
deadline
Submit PAIA
Annual

Report to
Parliament by 30
Sept 2021

100%
submission
done.

100%
submissions
by deadline.

Report
submitted by
30 Sept 2021

Target
achieved.

Target
achieved.

Target
achieved.

None.

None.

None.

Comment on
Variances /
Corrective

Measures

report was
submitted to
the SPT by Feb
2022.

In future,
report target
submission
deadline would
be adjusted to a
later quarter.
None.

None.

None.
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Strategies to deal with areas of under-performance

The following planned performance targets were not achieved during the 2021-22 financial year:

Table 7: Areas of under-performance

Programme 1: Administration

Annual Target

Achievement by

Reasons for under-achievement

[EEY

2

Performance Indicators
Percentage expenditure against
total budget

98% - 102%
expenditure

31 March 2022
94.1% expenditure
(Approximately

Delays with procurement processes.
Projects with purchase orders rolled

R193.8m of to next financial year
R206m)
13 Percentage implementation of Risk ~ 80% - 100% 67.5% Delayed procurement on some on

4

[EEY

6

[EEY

)

Treatment Plan

Percentage implementation of
Recommendations of 2020-21
Remuneration Structures and
Conditions of Service Report
Percentage Implementation of
Organisational Culture Renewal Plan
Percentage Implementation of
Internal Audit Plan

implementation
80% - 100%

80% - 100%
implementation
80% - 100%
implementation

Implementation
15% implemented

60%
implementation
63%
implementation.

the treatment plan activities.
Capacity constraints and
consequent priority on other key
processes.

Capacity constraints and delayed
procurement processes

Delays in the provision of
information and processes at the
various business unit levels.

1.10 Percentage Resolution of Audit 80% - 100% Resolved 45% of Capacity constraints, resulting in
Findings resolution 269 findings. focus biased towards what is
(16% in progress considered core functions of
and 40% open) business units than on the findings
1.12 Completion of Impact Monitoring Complete Neither evaluation  Capacity constraints and a focus on
and Evaluation Report Report report nor digitised  other key processes and special
system completed.  projects.
Appointed service Initially acquired additional
provider and temporary personnel resigned
developed project
plan for the
evaluation study,
which overlaps into
the new financial
year.
1.13 Completion of Report on the Complete Report not Non-responsiveness to calls for
sufficiency of the SAHRC Budget by Report completed. proposals

Sept 2021

Programme 2: Promotion of Human Annual Target Achievement by 31 Reasons for under-
Rights March 2022 achievement

2.2

2.6

2.7

Percentage implementation of
Action Plan on 2020-21 Racial
Polarisation Conference Resolutions

Percentage implementation of
Action Plan on Impact of Covid-19
on children and youth Conference
Resolutions

Percentage implementation of
Action Plan on Provincial Human
Rights Dialogue Resolutions

80% - 100%
implementation

Host Conference by June
2021.

Implement 80% - 100%
of Action Plan

Host 9 Provincial Human
Rights Dialogues by June
2021.

Action Plans approved
for implementation.
Report launched on the
website

No updates provided on
this item.

Provincial dialogues
hosted but not all
provinces implemented

Implementation
delayed due to the
service provider
delayed completion
of the report
Capacity constraints
as focus area
Commissioner was on
long sick leave.
Provincial focus
biased towards the
hosting of the
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Programme 2: Promotion of Human Annual Target Achievement by 31 Reasons for under-
Rights March 2022 achievement

Implement 80% - 100% the action plans on dialogues, which has

of Action Plans on resolutions. been achieved, as

Provincial Human Rights opposed to the

Dialogues Resolutions. implementation of
the resolutions.

2.11 Convening of Annual Provincial Convene 9 Annual Convened 22 stakeholder Misinterpretation of
Human Rights Stakeholder Provincial Human Rights ~ engagements, but most the performance
Engagements Stakeholder of the reported activities  indicator.

Engagements by August do not meet indicator
2021 definition.

2.15 Hosting of Virtual National Schools Host Virtual National Competition hosted by Oct Target only met in Oct

Moot Court Competition Schools Moot Court 2021 2022 instead of Sep
Competition by September 2022.
2021 Dependency on external

scheduling, which is
often concluded after
the approval of the
institutional annual

plan.
] ] e |
nghts March 2022 achievement
Number of strategic impact Institute 15 strategic Some identified
litigation matters instituted impact litigation matters Instltuted matters were not
approved.

3.7 Percentage utilisation of the CRM Full (100%) utilisation of ~ 98% License expired and
System to promote efficient and the CRM System utilisation there was a 3-week
effective complaints handling delay in the renewal.

Some users awaiting
training.

3.8 Review of the SAHRC Complaints Revised Complaints Revised CHP Still awaiting
Handling Procedures Handling Procedures Commissioner

approval.

Human nghts March 2022 achievement
Submission of NPM-OPCAT Submit NPM-OPCAT Report submitted by NPM-OPCAT Annual
Monitoring Report Monitoring Report by Feb 2022 Monitoring report was

Sept 2021 submitted to the SPT by
Feb 2022.

In future, report target
submission deadline
would be adjusted to a
later quarter.
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3. PART C: GOVERNANCE

INSTITUTIONAL GOVERNANCE

Commissioners

The Commissioners provide leadership, guidance and oversight to the work of the Commission by facilitating the
South African human rights agenda at the international, regional, national, and provincial levels. The
Commissioners are committed to business integrity, transparency, and professionalism in all activities. As part of
this commitment, the Commissioners support the highest standards of corporate governance and the ongoing
development of best practice. The members of the Commission for the year under review include:

Table 11: Members of the Commission 2021-22

Name Appointment status
1. |Adv. B. C. Majola Chairperson - Full time — appointed January 3, 2017
2. | Ms. F. Chohan Deputy Chairperson - Full time — appointed July 1, 2021
3. [Adv. A. H. Gaum Full time — appointed January 3, 2017
4. | Ms. P. Ntuli Full time — appointed July 1, 2021
5. | Ms. M. A. Makwetla Full time — appointed January 3, 2017
6. |Adv. J. B. Malatji Full time — appointed January 3, 2017
7. |[Mr. A. C. Nissen Part time — appointed January 3, 2017
8. [Mr. J. Sibanyoni Part time — appointed January 3, 2017

Risk Management

Legislating the implementation of risk management in public sector institutions is part of a macro strategy of the
state to ensure the achievement of public sector institutional goals and objectives. For the Commission, this
mandate can be found in Section 77 of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999 as amended by Act
29 0f 1999, Treasury Regulations TR3.1.10, and Treasury Regulations TR3.1.13). Risk management, therefore,
forms an integral part of the Commission’s plan to deliver effectively and efficiently on its mandate. During the
period under review the Commission revised and produced a more comprehensive risk management policy and
strategy. Linked with this process was risk profiling and development of a risk appetite statement.

The Risk Management Committee, consisting of senior management and chaired by the Chief Financial Officer,
advises on arising risks and mitigation mechanisms, and monitors ongoing implementation of treatment plans. The
Audit Committee independently reviews the strategic risks register of the Commission and advises the Commission
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where necessary. The risk register and plan capture institutional strategic risks and mitigating actions and are
reviewed for progress on a quarterly basis.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The function of legislative and regulatory compliance has been delegated to the heads of units to ensure
compliance with the relevant legislation and statutes pertaining to their programmes. Compliance in relation to core
operations is the overseen by the Chief Operations Officer, while the Chief Financial Officer oversees the corporate
and financial-related compliance issues. The Chief Executive Officer has the ultimate responsibility to monitor and
ensure institutional and financial compliance as the accounting officer. The Chairperson, as Executive Authority,
is responsible for overall strategic and governance oversight.

Institutional Governance Framework

The Commission established various governance structures to enhance delivery on the constitutional mandate
through provision of strategic direction and oversight; ensuring operational effectiveness and efficiencies; as well
as legislative compliance. These governance structures include committees of Commissioners; Audit Committee;
Risk Management Committee; Senior Management Meetings; and various other committees set up in response to
legislative requirements and operational effectiveness. The Commission is in a process of further developing its
institutional governance framework to ensure integration and improved standards of its governance practices.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee Report reflecting on the composition and responsibilities of the Audit Committee is included
with the Annual Financial Statements.
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4. PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Expenditure

The following tables summarise final audited expenditure by programme (Table 16) and by salary bands (Table 17).
In particular, these tables provide an indication of the amount spent on personnel costs in terms of each programme

or salary band within the Department.

Table 16: Personnel costs by programme for 2021 to 2022

Personnel cost | Average
o Professional | asa personnel
Total Personnel T’a'“'“? and special | percentage of | cost per
expenditure expenditure expenditure services total employee
Programme (R'000) (R'000) (R'000) (R'000) expenditure | (R'000)
222 13 027 9 1447
Chief Executive Officer 05 30 58294 5%
20193 19 542 97% 1029
Commissioners 87450 ’
Corporate and financial 51969 25970 116 213, 50% 787
support services
102 1604 799 41
Programme support 02053 8160 365177 ¥ 8
rotal 197 020 140 142 627133 : 1% 887

Table 17: Personnel costs by salary bands for 2021 to 2022

P | ont | o
(R'000)

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 3274 2% 298

Skilled (levels 3-5) 1473 1% 368

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 36078 25% 644

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 7421 53% 1156

Senior management (levels 13-16) 28246 19% 1412

Total 146 497 100% 927
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The following tables provide a summary per programme (Table 18) and salary bands (Table 19), of expenditure
incurred as a result of salaries, overtime, home owners’ allowance, and medical assistance. In each case, the table
provides an indication of the percentage of personnel budget used for these items.

Table 18: Salaries, overtime, home owners’ allowance, and medical assistance by programme for
2021 to 2022

Home owners’

Total

Programme Salaries Overtime allowance Medical assistance
Medical
Salaries as Overtime asii:t::nce
a % of asa % of HOA as a % asa % of
Amount personnel Amount personnel Amount of personnel | Amount personnel
(R'000) cost (R'000) cost (R'000) cost (R'000) cost
Chief Executive 13514 9% 0% 71 1% 402 3%
Officer
19924 14% 1903 308 335
Commissioners ’ 0% 2% 2%
Corporate and 25319 17% 71512 0% 571 29, 1279 5%
financial support
services
87740 60% 85 852 1426 2673
Programme support ’ 0% 2% 3%
146 497 100% 159 0% 2376 29, 4691 3%
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Table 19: Salaries, overtime, home owners’ allowance, and medical assistance by salary bands
for 2021 to 2022

. . Home Owners’ . .
Salary bands Salaries Overtime Allowance (HOA) Medical assistance
Salaries as Overtime HOAasa ass'\i/:ta::;e! as
Amount (Roog) | 270 Amount | asa%of | Amount % of Amount 29 of
personnel (R'000) personnel (R'000) personnel (R'000) X
personnel
cost cost cost
cost
Lower skilled 3274 2% 14 0% 195 6% 185 6%
(levels 1-2)
Skilled (levels 3-5) 1473 1% 7 0.5% 71 5% 112 8%
Highly skilled production | 36078 25% 89 0.2% 997 3% 2121 6%
(levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision | 77427 53% 50 0.1% 893 1% 1841 2%
(levels 9-12)
Senior management 28 246 19% - 0.0% 220 1% 431 2%
(levels 13-16)
Total 146 497 100% 159 0.8% 2 376 2% 4691 3%

Employment and vacancies

The following tables summarise the number of posts on establishment of the Commission, the number of employees,
the vacancy rate, and whether there are any staff additional to those on establishment. This information is presented
in terms of three key variables: Programme (Table 20), Salary band (Table 21), and Critical occupations (Table 22).
Departments have identified critical occupations that need to be monitored. Table 22 provides establishment and
vacancy information for the key critical occupations of the Department.
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Table 20: Employment and vacancies by programme at 31 March 2022

Programme Number of posts Number of posts Vacancy rate Number of posts filled
g P filled y additional to the establishment

Chief Executive Officer 12 9 25% -
Commissioners 23 19 17% -

Corporate and financial 41 33 20% -

support services

Programme support 122 97 20% -

Total 198 158 20% -

Table 21: Employment and vacancies by salary bands at 31 March 2022

Salary band Number of Number of posts Vacancy rate Number of posts filled
& posts filled y additional to the establishment

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 1 1 0% -

Skilled 6 4 33% -

(levels 3-5)

Highly skilled production 74 56 24% -

(levels 6-8)

Highly skilled supervision 78 67 14% -

(levels 9-12)

Senior management (Levels 29 20 31% -

13-16)

Total 198 158 20% -

Table 22: Employment and vacancies by critical occupation as at 31 March 2022

Number of posts filled

N f
Critical occupations Number of posts umbe:r of posts Vacancy rate additional to the
filled .
establishment

Legal 55 50 9%

Advocacy and 24 16 33%

Communications

Research 13 7 54%

Total 92 73 22%
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Job evaluation

The Public Service Regulations 1999 introduced job evaluation as a way of ensuring that work of equal value is
remunerated equally. Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate
any job in an organisation. In terms of the regulations, all vacancies on salary levels nine and higher must be evaluated
before they are filled.

The following table (Table 23) summarises the number of jobs evaluated during the year under review. The table also
provides statistics on the posts that were upgraded or downgraded.

Table 23: Job evaluation for 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 (including vacant positions)

0,
Numberof | ® °fposts Posts upgraded Posts downgraded
Salary band Number of i evaluated
9 0
posts evaluated by salary Number % of posts e % of posts
bands evaluated evaluated

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) - - - - - - -

Skilled (levels 3-5) - - - - - - -

Highly skilled production - - - - - - -
(levels 6-8)

Highly skilled supervision - - - - - - -
(levels 9-12)

Senior management service, - - - - - . .
band A

Senior management - - - - - - .
service, band B

Senior management service, - - - - - - -
band C

Senior management service, - - - - - . .
band D

Total - - - - - . .
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Employment changes

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turover rates provide an
indication of trends in the employment profile of the Department. The following tables provide a summary of tumover
rates by salary band (Table 24) and by critical occupations (Table 25).

Table 24: Annual turnover rates by salary band for 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Number of employees Appointments Terminations and

Salary band per band at 1 April and transfers into | transfers out of the Turnover rate
2021 the Department Department

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 11 - - -
Skilled (levels 3-5) 4 - - -
Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 56 4 5 9%
Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 67 7 2 3%
Senior management service, band A 15 1 2 13%
(level 13)
Senior management service, band B 3 3 1 33%
(level 14)
Senior management service, band C 2 0 0 -
(level 15 -16)
Total 158 15 19 6%

Table 25: Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Occupation Appointments and Terminations and

Number of employees per .

occupation at 1 Aoril 2020 transfers into the transfers out of the Turnover rate

P P Department Department

Legal services 55 4 1 2%
Advocacy and 24 1 2 8%
Communications
Research 13 1 1 8%
Total 92 6 4 4%
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Table 26: Reasons why staff are leaving the Department

Termination type

Death 2
Resignation 6
Retrenchment -
Expiry of contract 1
Dismissal — operational changes -
Dismissal — misconduct -
Dismissal - inefficiency -
Discharged due to ill-health -
Retirement 1
Transfers to other public service departments -
Other (voluntary separation package) -
Total 10
Total number of employees who left as a % of the total employment 6%
Table 27: Promotions by critical occupation
Promotions to Salar.y level Progressions to Not.ch
Occupation Emplo.yees at1 e promotions as a arllot.her notch progressions as a
April 2021 level % of employees within a salary % of employees
by occupation level by occupation
Legal services 55 - -
Advocacy and 24 - -
Communications
Research 13 - -
Total 92 - - .
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Table 28: Promotions by salary band

. Notch
. Salary band Progressions to .
Promotions ) progressions as
Employees at 1 promotions as a % another notch
Salary band : to another s a % of
April 2021 of employees by within a salary
salary level employees by
salary level level
salary band
Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 1 -
Skilled (levels 3-5) 4 -
Highly skilled production 56 -
(levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision 67 -
(levels 9-12)
Senior management 20 1 5%
(levels13-16)
Total 158 1 2%
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Employment equity

The tables in this section are based on the formats prescribed by the Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No. 55 of

1998).

Table 29: Total number of employees in each of the following occupational bands at 31 March
2022 (including part-time Commissioners)

Male Female
Occupational bands

African Coloured | Indian | White | African Coloured Indian White Total
Top management 4 1 0 1 2 0 2 0 10
Senior management 9 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 12
Professionally qualified and 22 2 0 2 24 4 2 2 58
experienced specialists and mid-
management
Skilled technical and academically 8 0 1 0 30 2 1 1 43
qualified workers, junior
management, supervisors,
foremen, and superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary 2 0 0 1 16 1 0 0 20
decision making
Unskilled and defined decision 2 0 0 0 12 1 0 0 15
making
Total 47 3 1 4 85 9 5 4 158

Table 30: Recruitment (including employees with disabilities and research associates) for 1 April
2022 to 31 March 2022.
Male Female

Ocoupational bans African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total
Top management 0 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 3
Senior management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Professionally qualified and 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2
experienced specialists and
mid-management
Skilled technical and 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
academically qualified
workers, junior management,
supervisors, foremen, and
superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
decision making
Unskilled and defined decision 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
making
Total 0 0 0 0 3 1 1 0 5
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Table 31: Terminations (including employees with disabilities and Research Associates) for

1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Occupational bands Male Female

African Coloured Indian | White African Coloured Indian | White Total

Top management 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Senior management 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Professionally qualified and 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1

experienced specialists and
mid-management

Skilled technical and 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2
academically qualified
workers, junior management,
supervisors, foremen, and

superintendents

Semi-skilled and 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
discretionary decision

making

Unskilled and defined 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
decision making

Total 1 0 0 0 4 0 0 1 6
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 32: Disciplinary action for 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Male Female
African Coloured Indian | White | African | Coloured | Indian | White Total
Disciplinary 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3
action
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Table 33: Skills development for 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Occupational Male Female

categories African | Coloured | Indian | White | African | Coloured | Indian | White | Total
Legislators, senior
officials, and 15 0 0 0 2 2 3 1 23
managers
Professionals 1 1 0 1 5 0 0 0 18
Technicians and
associate 8 0 2 1 23 3 0 0 37
professionals
Clerks 2 1 0 0 8 0 0 0 1
Elementary
occupations 0 0 0 0 5 1 0 0 6
Total
Employees with 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
disabilities
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Performance rewards

To encourage good performance, the Department has granted the following performance rewards during the year
under review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, and disability (Table 34), salary bands (Table
35) and critical occupations (Table 36).

Table 34: Performance rewards by race, gender, and disability for 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Beneficiary profile Cost

Number of Total number of % of total | Average

beneficiaries employees in I Cost (R'000) cost per

group employee
Total African 126 131 96% 955 8
Male 44 47 94% 619 14
Female 82 84 98% 336 4
Total Asian 3 5 100% 30 6
Male 1 1 100% 4 4
Female 4 4 100% 26 7
Total Coloured 12 13 92% 64 5
Male 1 2 50% 6 6
Female 11 11 100% 58 5
Total White 6 6 100% 31 5
Male 3 3 100% 14 5
Female 3 3 100% 17 6
Employees with a 2 2 100% 14 7

disability

Total 149 155 96% 1080 7
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Table 35: Performance rewards by salary bands for personnel below senior management
service for 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Salary bands Beneficiary profile Cost
Number | Number | % of total Total costas
o a % of the
of of within Total cost Average cost per
. , total
beneficia | employe salary (R'000) employee
. personnel
ries es bands .
expenditure
Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 7 11 64% 9 1286 |0
Skilled (levels 3-5) 4 4 100% 6 1500 1 00%
Highly skilled production 50 57 88% 108 3960 | 01%
(levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision 56 69 81% 410 7321 3%
(levels 9-12)
Total 117 141 83% 628 5325 4%

Table 36: Performance-related rewards (cash bonus) by salary band for senior management

service
Total cost as
Total cost Average a % of the
Salary band Beneficiary profile : cost per total
(R'000) employee personnel
expenditure
Number of Number of % of total
beneficiaries employees within band
Band A 9 11 82% 69 6 1%
Band B 1 1 100% 8 8 0%
Band C 0 0 0% 0 0 0%
Band D 0 1 0% 0 0 0%
Total 10 13 80% 77 14 1%

Foreign workers

The tables below summarise the employment of foreign nationals in the Department in terms of salary bands and by
major occupation. The tables also summarise changes in the total number of foreign workers in each salary band
and by each major occupation.
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Table 37: Foreign workers for 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 by salary band

1 April 2021 31 March 2022 Change

Salary band

Number | % oftotal | Number | % of total | Number | % change
Lower skilled (levels 1-2) - - -
Skilled (levels 3-5) - - -
Highly skilled production (levels - - -
6-8)
Highly skilled supervision (levels 5 83% S 83%
9-12)
Senior management (levels 13- 1 17% 1 17%
16)
Total 6 100% 6 100%

Table 38: Foreign workers for 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 by major occupation

1 April 2021 31 March 2022 Change
Major occupation %
Number | % of total | Number | % of total | Number
change
Legal 2 33% 2 33% 0 0%
Education 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Research 4 67% 4 67% 0 0%
Total 6 100% 6 100% - 0%
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Leave utilisation for 1 January 2021 to 31 March 2022

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the public service. The
following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave and disability leave. In both cases, the estimated cost of

the leave is also provided.

Table 39: Sick leave for 1 January 2021 to 31 March 2022

: Number of % of total
Total % days with employees employees | Average days per

Salary band days medical usiFr: iick usiFr)l iick ens: lo Zep

y certification g g poy

leave leave

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 127 - 3 27% 42.3
Skilled (levels 3-5) 20 - 3 5% 6.7
Highly skilled production 169 - 26 46% 6.5
(levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision | 204 - 35 52% 58
(levels 9-12)
Senior management 87 - 8 40% 10.9
(levels 13-16)
Total 607 - 75 47% 8.1

Table 40 summarises the use of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions in the Public Service
Co-ordinating Bargaining Council (PSCBC) in 2000, requires management to take annual leave to prevent high levels
of accrued leave being paid at the time of termination of service.

Table 40: Annual leave for 1 January 2021 to 31 March 2022

Salary bands Total days taken A:;l:lg‘])?::r
Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 127 12
Skilled (levels 3-5) 70 18
Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 701 13
Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 995 13
Senior management (levels 13-16) 200 56
Total 2093 13
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The following table summarises payments made to employees as a result of

Table 41: Leave pay-outs for 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

leave that was not taken.

Reason Total amount Number of Avtfgfnp:\!rzznt
(R’000) employees P R O%O)Y

Leave pay-out for 2021 to 2022 for the non- -

use of leave in previous cycle

Capped leave pay-outs on termination of -

service for 2021 to 2022

Current leave pay-out on termination of 998 10 99.8

service for 2021 to 2022

Total 998 10 99.8

HIV/ AIDS and Health Promotion Programmes

Table 42: Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk of
contracting HIV/AIDS and related diseases (if any)

Key steps taken to reduce the
risk

None. Discovery Healthy Company (EAP Programme) has a full-fledged
HIV/AIDS unit that the Commission’s staff members may access 24
hours a day, 7 days a week. Contact details are readily available to staff.

World Aids Day Awareness was
not held due to COVID-19.

Table 43: Details of health promotion and HIV/AIDS programmes (tick the applicable boxes and

provide the required information)

Question Yes | No etz i
yes

1. Has the Department designated a member of the Senior Management X Not

Service (SMS) to implement the provisions contained in Part VI, section? applicable to

E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 20017 If so, provide the the SAHRC

name and position.

2. Does the Department have a dedicated unit or has it designated specific | X 5 members

staff members to promote the health and well-being of employees? If so, (R90 000)

indicate the number of employees involved in this task and the annual

budget available for this purpose.
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3. Has the Department introduced an employee assistance or health
promotion programme for employees? If so, indicate the key elements

and/or services of this programme.

Discovery
Healthy
Company
counselling,
wellness,
health
advice, and
financial
advice

4. Has the Department established (a) committee(s) as contemplated in
Part VI, Section E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations,
20017 If so, please provide the names of the members of the committee

and the stakeholder(s) they represent.

Not
applicable to
the SAHRC

5. Has the Department reviewed its employment policies and practices to
ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate against employees on the
basis of their HIV status? If so, list the employment policies and/or

practices so reviewed.

The
Employee
Handbook.

6. Has the Department introduced measures to protect HIV-positive
employees or those perceived to be HIV-positive from discrimination? If

so, list the key elements of these measures.

Wellness
day, health
education
and voluntary
screening

7. Does the Department encourage its employees to undergo voluntary

counselling and testing? If so, list the results achieved.

Employees
were  given
time to
undertake
voluntary
counselling
and testing
(VCT) and
interact  with
the  health
officials
during  an
annual
Wellness
day.
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8. Has the Department developed measures and/or indicators to monitor
and evaluate the impact of its health promotion programme? If so, list

these measures and/or indicators.

X Health
promotion is
done through
ICAS
services.
Quarterly
reports are
provided and

analysed.

Table 44 summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the Department for the year under

review.

Table 44: Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised for 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total
Correctional counselling 0 0%
Verbal warning 1 33%
Written warning 0 0%
Final written warning 2 67%
Suspended without pay 0 0%
Fine 0 0%
Demotion 0 0%
Dismissal 0 0%
Not guilty 0 0%
Case withdrawn 0 0%
Total 3 100%
Table 45: Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings
Type of misconduct Number % of total
Insolence and disobedience 1 100%
Poor performance termination 0 0%
Gross dishonesty 0 0%
Total 1 100%
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Table 46: Grievances lodged for 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Number % of total
Number of grievances resolved 2 100%
Number of grievances not resolved 0 0%
Total number of grievances lodged 2 100%

Skills development

This section highlights the efforts of the Department with regard to skills development.

Table 47: Training needs identified for 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Training needs identified at start of reporting

Number of period

Occupational employees Skills

Gender Other
categories at 1 April programmes

Learnerships forms of | Total
2021 and other
training
short courses

Legislators, senior Female 8 8 - 8
officials, and managers
(Ievels 13-1 6) Male 15 - 15 - 15
Professionals Female 12 - 12 - 12
levels 11-12
(levels 11-12) Male 13 i 13 i 13
Technicians and Female 26 - 26 - 26
associate professionals
(Ievels 8'10) Male 11 - 11 - 11
Clerks Female 8 - 8 - 8
levels 4-7
(levels 4-7) Male 3 i 3 i 3
Service and sales Female - - - - -
workers

Male - - - - -
Skilled agriculture and | Female - - - - -
fishery workers
shery w Male - - - - -
Craft and related Female - - - - -
trades workers

Male - - - - -
Plant and machine Female - - - - -
operators and
assemblers Male - - - - -

Female 6 - 6 - 6
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Elementary Male - - - - -
occupations
(levels 1-3)
Sub Total Female 60 - 60 - 60
Male 42 = 42 - 42
Total 102 - 102 - 102
Table 48: Training provided for 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022
Training provided within the reporting period
Number of
: Skills
Occupational employees Other
: Gender : programmes
categories at 1 April Learnerships forms of | Total
and other
2022 training
short courses

Legislators, senior | Female 6 - 6 - 6
officials, and
managers (level Male 11 - 11 - i
13-16)
Professionals Female 5 - 5 - 5
level 11-12
(level 11-12) Male 8 i 8 i 8
Technicians and Female 3 - 3 - 3
associate
professionals (level | Male 4 - 4 - 4
8-10)
Clerks (level 4-7) Female 2 - 2 - 2

Male 1 - 1 - 1
Service and sales | Female - - - - -
workers

Male - - - - -
Skilled agriculture | Female - - - - -

d fish k

and fishery workers Vol - - - - -
Craft and related Female - - - - -
trades workers

Male - - - - -
Plant and machine | Female - - - - -
operators and
assemblers Male - - - - -
Elementary Female - - - - -
occupations (level
1_3) Male - - - - -
Sub Total Female 16 - 16 - 16

Male 24 - 24 - 24
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Total

40

40

40

Utilisation of consultants

Table 49: Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds

Scorecard for Senior
Managers

T Total number of consultants Duration: Contract value in
Project title ,
that worked on the project work days Rand
Development of Balance 1 120 R346 080,00
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Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee is pleased to present its report for the financial year ended 31 March 2022.

Audit committee members and attendance

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed hereunder and should meet four times per annum as per its approved
terms of reference and makes provision for two (2) extra special audit committee meetings as might be required. During the
current year four (4) quarterly meetings were held.

Name of member Number of meetings attended
Mrs V. Menye** 4
Mr B. Modise * 4
Ms. L. Vilakazi* 4

** Appointed as Chairperson on 31 October 2020
*Appointed as member on 06 November 2020

Audit committee responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 77 of the Public Finance
Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal
terms of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged
all its responsibilities as contained therein, except that it has not reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices.

Corporate Governance

The Committee is of the opinion that South African Human Rights Commission (SAHRC) continues to strive towards
complying with sound principles of corporate governance through the implementation of its governance framework. The
Committee is not aware of any issues of non-compliance with corporate governance. Notwithstanding that, the low
implementation of action plans remains a concern.

Compliance

During the current financial year, the Committee monitored and was comfortable with the compliance of various pieces of
legislation impacting the SAHRC. There are areas of non-compliance identified within the Supply Chain Management area
which requires improvement in the monitoring control systems in place. Internal controls systems are currently undergoing
process improvements to address the weaknesses identified.

Effectiveness of Internal Controls

The systems of internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance on the policies, procedures, behaviours and
other aspects of the Commission. This enables effective and efficient operation, to ensure the quality of internal and
external reporting, and ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

In line with the PFMA and King Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides the Committee with
reasonable assurance that the internal controls are adequate and effective. This is achieved by means of reviews and testing
of the design, implementation and effectiveness of internal controls as well as the identification of corrective actions and
suggested enhancement to the internal controls and processes.

From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the audit report on financial statements, and the management letter from the
Auditor General South Africa (AGSA), significant non-compliance with policies and procedures have been reported.
Accordingly, we can report that the systems of internal control for the period under review were partially efficient and partially
effective. It is noted that remedial actions are in progress to address non-compliance issues identified and Internal Audit will
review it during the new financial period.

Risk Management

In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, in relation to risk management, the Committee reviewed the risk management
framework, strategy, policy, and monitored the implementation of risk mitigation strategies.

In our opinion the SAHRC'’s approach to the risk management processes is partially adequate and effective. There is a need to
improve the system of risk management, beginning by conducting organisation-wide annual risk assessments, and
implementing the risk management strategy.

Performance Management
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Audit Committee Report

The performance management predetermined objectives received an adverse opinion from the external auditors in the prior
year. The adverse opinion was mainly due to lack of adequate performance evidence provided to the AGSA. Internal Audit
decided to embark on the exercise of performance evidence gathering using One Drive Microsoft platform to ensure
completeness of the evidence. All the business units were trained to use this platform, and the same evidence was shared with
Strategic Support and Governance unit to use for their reviews.

In-Year Management and Quarterly Reports

The Audit Committee has noted the content and quality of the Quarterly Reports prepared and issued by the Accounting Officer
during the year under review.

Evaluation of Financial Statements

The audit committee has:
*  reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual report, with the Auditor-

General and the members;

reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa's management report and management’s response thereto;
reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices (delete if not applicable);

reviewed the entities compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;

reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

Auditor's Report

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the external auditor on the annual financial statements and is of
the apinion that the audited annual financial statements be accepted and read together with the report of the auditor.

PP >

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

Date: 29 July 2022




Report of the auditor-general to Parliament on South African Human
Rights Commission

| Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1. I have audited the financial statements of the South African Human Rights Commission set
out on pages x to x, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March
2022, the staterent of financial performance, statement of changes In net assets, cash flow
statement and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then
ended, as well as notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. -

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the South African Human Rights Commission as at 31 March 2022, and its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (Standards of GRAP) and the
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA).

Basis for opinion

3. | conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.

4. | am independent of the constitutional institution in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Infernational code of ethics for professional accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical
requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.

5. i believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter
6. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Irregular expenditure

7. As disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, the constitutional institution incurred
irregular expenditure of R10 784 000 as it did not comply with Treasury Regulation 16A 9.1
{d) and 16A 6.3 (b).



Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

8. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with the Standards of GRAP and the requirements of
the PFMA and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

8. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the
constitutional institution’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the constitutional institution
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the I1SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered mateial if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

11. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
included in the annexure to this auditor's report.

| Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope

12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 {PAA) and the general notice issued in
terms thereof, | have a responsibility to report on the usefulness and reliability of the
reported performance information against predstermined objectives for the selected
programme presented [n the annual performance report. [ performed procedures to identify
material findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

13. My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the réported performance
information, which must be based on the constitutional institution’s approved performance
planning documents. | have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the
performance indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures do net examine
whether the actions taken by the constitutional institution enabled service delivery. My
procedures do not extend to any disclosurss or assertions relating to the extent of
achievements in the current year or planned performance strategies and information in
respect of future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance
information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.



14. | eveluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in
accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting
framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected programme
presented in the constitutional institution’s annual performance report for the year ended 31

March 2022:
—
Programme B _ B Pages in the annual performance report '
Prograrmme 2 — Promotion of human rights | X=X

15. | performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was
properly presented and whether performarnce was consistent with the approved
performance planning documents. | performed further procedures to determine whaether the
indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of
the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and
complete.

16. The material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the performance information of the
selected programme are as follows:

Programme 2 - Promotion of human rights
Various indicators

17. The source information, evidence and method of calculation for measuring the planned
indicator was not clearly defined and related systems and pracesses were not adequate to
enable consistent measurement and reliable reporting of performance against the
predetermined indicator definitions. As a result, limitations were placed on the scope of my
work and | was unable to audit the reliability of the achievements reported against targets in
the annual performance report. This was for the following indicators:

[No. Name of indicator [ Reported achlevement ]
|1 | 2.1 Percentage implementation of programme of i 100% Implementation and excesded with j
action for promotional strategic interventions to additional intervention
influence policy, legisiation, service delivery, and
create awareness.
{2 | 2.2 Percentage implementation of Action Plan on { Target not met as action plan not implemented
2020-21 Racial Polarisation Conference Resolutions, | '
3 2.3 Percentage implemsntation of Action Plan on | Implemented 856%
2012 Amraan Declaration and Programme of Action
|| for promoting Gender Equality. N
4 | 2.4 Percentage implementation of Equality 1 100% impiemented and excesded with
Programme Toolkit Provincial Action Plan. || additional activities by some provinces
5 | 2.5 Percentage implementation of Action Plan to I 100%
pramote functionality of Equality Courts
6 2.6 Percentage Implementation of Action Plan on 1 Target not achieved
| Impact of Covid-19 on children and youth Conference |
L Resolutions. !
7 | 2.7 Percentage implementation of Action Plan on | Implementad 0% of Action Plan
Provincial Human Rights Dialogue Resoiutions. -
8 2.8 Percentage Implementation of Action Plan on 100% impiemented
National Human Rights Dialogue Resolufions I
9 | 2.10 Percentage impiementation of Action Plan on tmplemanted 90% of action plan on anti-
| | 2020-21 Anti-Corruption Conference Resolutions . corruption conference resolutions - through




Indicator 2.9 — hosting of human rights calendar day events

| No. Name of indicator [ Reported achievement :‘
I international summit held on: the protection of
! - whistle-blowers
10 | 2.12 Percentage implementation of Action Plan to Impiemented 88% of the Action Plan
empower Community Human Rights Champions
11| 2.13 Percentage implementation of Media and 100% implemented _"
| Communications Plan B |

18. The achievement of 23 events was reported against a target of 10 events in the annual
performance report. However, the supporting evidence provided did not agree to the
reported achievement and indicated an achievement of 18 events.

Various indicators

19. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the reasons for the
variances between the planned target and the achievement reported in the annual
performance report. This was due to the severity of the measurability finding. | was unable
to confirm the reported reasons for the variances by alteative means. Consequently, |
was unable to determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported reasons
for the variances. This was for the following indicators;

mdicator !
no. Indicator name Target Reported achigvement
2.1 Percentage implementation of 80% -100% implementation of | 100% Implementation and
programme of action for promotional programme of action for exceeded with additional
strategic interventions to infiuence promotional strategic intervention
policy, legislation, service delivery, and | interventions
create swareness.
22 Percentage implementation of Actior Implement 80% - 100% of Target not met as action |
Plan based on 2020-21 Racial Action Plan on Ragcial plan not implemented.
Polarisation Conference Resolutions Polarisation Conference
Resolutions —
27 Percantage implementation of Agtion implemant 80% - 100% of Provincial focus biased
Pian on Provincial Human Rights Action Plan towards the hosting of the
Dialogue Resolutions dialegues, which has been
| achisved, as opposed to the
implementation of the
resolutions.
' Workshops conducted to
! sensitise provincial offices
on the focus of the
| performance indicator J
Other matters

20. | draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets

21. Refer fo the annual performance report on pages ... to ... for information on the
achievement of planned targets for the year and management's explanations provided for
the under and over achievement of targets. This information should be considered in the
context of the material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information in paragraphs 17 to 19 of this report. —

4



Adjustment of material misstatements

22. | identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing.
These material misstatements were in the reported performance information of Programme
2 - Promotion of human rights. As Mmanagement subsequently corrected only some of the
misstatements, | raised materia! findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information. Those that were not comrected are reported above.

| Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope

23. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a
responsibility to report materia! findings on the constitutional institution’s compliance with
specific matters in key legislation. | performed procedures to identify findings but not to
gather evidence to express assurance.

24. The material findings on compiiance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:
Annual financial statements, performance reports and annual reports

25. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not fully prepared in accordance with
the prescribed financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper records as
required by section 40(1) (a) of the PFMA, Material misstatements of payables from
exchange transactions identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statement were
corrected and the supporting records were provided subsequently, resulting in the financial
statements receiving an unqualified opinion.

Expenditure management

26. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting
to R10 794 000, as disclosed in note 32 to the annual financial statements, as required by
section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and treasury regulation 9.1.1. The majority of the irregular
expenditure was caused by non-compliances with Treasury Regulation 16A 9.1 (d) and 16A
6.3 (b).

27, Payments were not made within 30 days or an agreed period after receipt of an invaice, as
required by treasury regulation 8.2.3.

Procurement and contract management

28. Some of the goods and services were procured without obtaining at least three written price
quotations in accordance with Treasury Regulation 16A6.1, paragraph 3.3.1 of Practice
Note 8 of 2007/08 and paragraph 3.2.1 of SCM instruction note 2 of 2021/22. Similar non-
compliance was also reported in the prior year.

29. Some of the contracts were not awarded in an economical manner and/or the prices of the
goods or services were not reasonable as required by PFMA 38(1) (b) and PFMA 45(b).



30. Some of the contracts were awarded to bidders based on functionality criteria that were not
stipulated in the original invitation for bidding, as required by tha 2017 Preferential
Procurement Regulation 5(1) and (3).

31. Some of the tenders which achieved the minimum qualifying score for functionality criteria
were not evaluated further in accordance with 2017 Preferential Procurement Regulation
5(7).

32. Some of the bid documentation/ invitation to tender for procurement of commodities
designated for [ocal content and production, did not stipulate the minimum threshold for
local production and content as required by the 2017 Preferential Procurement Regulation
8(2).

Consequence management

33. 1 was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that disciplinary steps were
taken against officials who had incurred irregular expenditure as required by section
38(1)(h)(iii) of the PFMA. This was because investigations into some irregular expenditure
were not performed.

Asset management

34. The constitutional institution did not determine if any state institution involved in education
and training required computer equipment before disposal of such equipment, as required
by treasury reguiation 16A.7.7.

|' Other information -

35. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report. The ether information does not
include the financial statements, the auditor's report and the selected programme
presented in the annual performance report that has been specifically reported in this
auditor’s report.

36. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance
information and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and | do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion on it.

37. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
80, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements and the selected programme presented in the annual performance report, or my
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

38. | did not receive the other information prior t the date of this auditor's report. When | do
receive and read this information, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
| am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request
that the other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, | may have
to retract this auditor's report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it
is corrected this will not be necessary.

—



| Internal control deficiencies

39. | considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective
was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reporied below are limited io
the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on the annual
performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation included in this report.

40. The constitutional institution did not have sufficient monitoring controls te ensure the proper
implementation of the overall process of planning, implementation and reporting on
financial and performance information.

41. The overall senior manager vacancy rate regressed from prior year's 13% to 17% in the
current year.

42. An action plan to address internal and externa! audit findings is in place, but the appropriate
level of management did not monitor adherence to the plan in a timely manner. There are
findings long dated that remain open and not addressed. This is also evidenced by the
repeat of findings from prior years.

| Other reports

43. | draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties, which had, or
could have, an impact on the matters reported in the constitutional institution’s financial
statements, reported performance information, compliance with applicable legislation and
other related matters. These reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial
statements or my findings on the reported performance information or compliance with

legislation.
—

44. The constitutional institution conducted two internal investigations into payment to incorrect
supplier bank account and theft of laptops. However, both investigations had limitations in
scope and depth, necessitating services of an external forensic investigator and the acting
CEQC has approved the request. A service provider has not been appointed yet to determine
any wilful intent of colleagues involved in the transaction or neglect.

Audieor- & e.nv;i\\\
Pretoria

31 July 2022

-
e« e,
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A UDIYOR-GENE
SOUTH AFRICA

Auditing to build public confidence



Annexure — Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and the
procedures performed on reported performance information for selected [programmes/
objectives/ development priorities] and on the constitutional institution’s compliance with
respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial statements

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this
auditor’s report, | also:

+ identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The rigk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of intemal control =

+ obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the constitutional institution’s internal control

* evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the accounting officer

* conciude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. 1 also conclude, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the South African Human Rights
Commission to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
| am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadeguate,
to modify my opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the
information available to me at the date of this auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause a constitutional institution to cease operating as a going concemn

¢ ovaluate the overali presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and determine whether the ﬁnanciql_statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance

3. | communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

4. | also provide the accounting officer with a statement that | have compiied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reascnably be thought to bear on my independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Chief Executive Officer Report

The members submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2022,

1. Incorporation
The entity was incorporated on 01 April 1996 and obtained its certificate to commence business on the same day.

As the Accounting Officer | am required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), to maintain
adequate accounting records and | am responsible for the content and integrity of the Annual Financial Statements and related
financial information included in this report. It is my responsibility as the Accounting Authority to ensure that the Annual
Financial Statements fairly present the state of affairs of the entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of its
operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on
the Annual Financial Statements and were given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The Annual Financial Statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) and in accordance with the PFMA.

2. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2022, the entity had an accumulated surplus of 61 789 and that the entity's total
assets exceed its liabilities by 61 789.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

As the Accounting Officer | have reviewed the entity’'s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2022 and in the light of this
review and the current financial position, | am satisfied that the entity has or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

3. Members

The members of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

Name Nationality

Adv BC Majola ( Chairperson) South Africa
Adv F Chohan { Deputy) South Africa
Adv. AH Gaum South Africa
Ms P Ntuli South Africa
Ms MA Makwetla South Africa
Adv. JB Malatji South Africa
Mr AC Nissen South Africa
Mr JB Sibanyoni South Africa

4. Corporate governance

General

The members are committed to business integrity, transparency and professionalism in all its activities. As part of this
commitment, the members supports the highest standards of corporate governance and the ongoing development of best
practice.

The entity confirms and acknowledges its responsibility to total compliance with the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct
("the Code") laid out in the King Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa 2002. The members discuss the
responsibilities of management in this respect, at Board meetings and monitor the entity's compliance with the code on a three
monthly basis.
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Chief Executive Officer Report

Corporate governance (continued)
Functioning of the Audit Committee

The SAHRC Audit Committee continues to function and has met four times during the period under review. The Audit
Committee is responsible for improving management by providing oversight over the audit functions, internal controls and the
financing process

Internal Audit

In line with the PFMA requirements, the internal audit activity provides the Audit Committee and management assurance that
the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of objective appraisal and evaluation of the risk
management process, internal control and governance processes. The audit plan is responsive to the Commission's risk
profile. For the year under review Internal Audit executed 91% of the approved plan.

The Internal Audit activity is fully supported by management, the Commissioners and the Audit Committee, and has full
unrestricted access to all organisational activities records, property and personnel.

§. Auditors

External auditors are responsible for the independent audit of the entity's Annual Financial Statements, compliance and audit of
predetermined objectives and subsequently providing an audit opinion on the three audit performed.

6. Risk Management

The legislating of the implementation of risk management in the public sector institutions is part of a macro strategy of the
South Africa government towards ensuring the achievement of public sector institutional goals and objectives. For the
Commission, this mandate can be found in Section 77 of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999 as amended by
Act 29 of 1999; Treasury Regulation 3.1.10 and Treasury Regulations 3.1.13) Risk management therefore forms an integral
part of the Commission's plan to deliver effectively and efficiently on its mandate.

The Commission continues to recognise the importance of risk management in ensuring its objectives and therefore
endeavours to comply with the requisite legislation as it pertains risk management.

The risk management process is facilitated by the Chief Financial Officer who is also responsible for chairing the Risk
Management Committee.

7. Approval of finances

The financial statements fairly represent the state of affairs of the Commission as at 31 March 2021. The statements are the
responsibility of the Commission while the auditors are responsible for reporting on the fair presentation of these financial
statements. The annual financial statements reflect appropriate accounting policies and adhere to applicable accounting
standards.

The annual financial statements set out on page 15 - 52, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the members on 29 July 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

e,

Chantal Kisoon
Acting Chief Executive Officer
South African Human Rights Commission
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South African Human Rights Commission

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2022

2022 2021
Note(s) '000 '000
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 7 155 103
Operating lease asset 5 19 117
Receivables from exchange transactions 8 435 90
Prepayments 6 814 652
Cash and cash equivalents 9 57 314 58 800
58 737 59 762
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 20874 17 736
Intangible assets 4 1590 1728
22 464 19 464
Total Assets 81 201 79 226
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation 10 114 217
Operating lease liability 5 42 43
Payables from exchange transactions 14 8 381 6 682
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 11 318 1132
Provisions 12 - 680
Employee benefits 13 1216 1182
Provision for leave accrued 12 8 295 7 150
18 366 17 086
Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation 10 - 114
Operating lease liability 5 1046 345
1046 459
Total Liabilities 19 412 17 545
Net Assets 61789 61681
Accumulated surplus 61789 61681
Total Net Assets 61789 61681
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Statement of Financial Performance

2022 2021
Note(s) ‘000 '000
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Administrative fees 15 236 4336
Interest received - investment 15 1486 1333
Total revenue from exchange transactions 1722 5 669
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 15 195 031 191 739
Donation Income 16 375 50
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 195 406 191 789
Total revenue 197 128 197 458
Expenditure
Employee related costs 17 (140 143) (128 745)
Depreciation and amortisation (2278) {2 056)
Finance costs 18 (28) (69)
Lease rentals on operating lease (9 540) (18 572)
Genaral Expenses 19 (44 103) (31025)
Total expenditure (196 092) (180 467)
Surplus for the year from continuing operations 1036 16 991
Loss on disposed of asset 3 (926) (271)
110 16 720

Surplus for the year
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South African Human Rights Commission
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Accumulated Total net
surplus / deficit assets
'000 '000
Balance at 01 April 2020 44 961 44 961
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year as per the Statement of Financial Performance 16720 16 720
Total changes 16 720 16 720
Balance at 01 April 2021 as Restated* 61679 61679
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year as per the Statement of Financial Performance 110 110
Total changes 110 110
Balance at 31 March 2022 61789 61789

As at year end the SAHRC has committed and earmarked a large part of its reserves and accumulated surplus towards the
Commissions functions under the institutional programmes (Administration, Promotion of human rights, Protection of human

rights and Monitoring observance of human rights of the organisation).

The SAHRC is constitutionally mandated to, inter alia, investigate any complaint alleging violation of human rights and to assist
any person adversely affected thereby to secure appropriate redress as outlined in the South African Human Rights
Commission Act, 40 of 2013 (SAHRCA) and the Section 181 of the Constitution. Hence the nature of the SAHRC is driven by
the mandate of human rights and not a profit driven. The SAHRC purpose is not to accumulate large reserves for investments
but utilise its funds towards human rights matters and its constitutional mandate. The SAHRC started to utilise both its annual
income and accumulated reserves towards funding human rights matters and its improved performance can be clearly noted

through its high level of commitments towards the execution of its mandate.

* The opening balance as at 01 April 2020 was restated through adjustments of prior period error which was identified during

the reporting date. Refer to note 27
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South African Human Rights Commission
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Cash Flow Statement

2022 2021
Note(s) '000 '000
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Non exchange revenue- Government grant 195 031 191 73¢9
Administrative fees 236 4336
Interest income 1486 1333
Donation Income 272 100
197 025 197 508

Payments
Employee costs (141 714) (127 659)
Suppliers (49 876) (49 984)
Finance cost (28) (69)

(191 618) (177 712)
Net cash flows from operating activities 21 5 407 19 796
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (6 398) (4 500)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance lease payments (495) (1627)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1 486) 13 669
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 58 800 45 131
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 57 314 58 800

The accounting policies on pages 20 to 31 and the notes on pages 32 to 52 form an integral part of the annual financial
statements.
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
actual
'000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue

Revenue from exchange
transactions

Administrative fees - - - 236 236

Interest received - investment 1000 - 1000 1486 486 33
Total revenue from exchange 1000 - 1000 1722 722
transactions

Revenue from non-exchange

transactions

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 195 031 - 195 031 195 031 - 33
Total revenue 196 031 - 196 031 196 753 722
Expenditure

Personnel (138 730) - (138 730) (141 714) (2984) 33
Finance lease payment (1819) - (1819) (495) 1324 33
Finance costs (340) - (340) (28) 312

Lease rentals on operating lease (9 697) - (9 697) (7 988) 1709 33
General expenses (48 458) - (48 458) (45 867) 2591 33
Total expenditure (199 044) - (199 044) {196 092) 2952

Surplus before taxation (3013) - (3 013) 661 3674

Deficit for the year from (3013) - (3013) 661 3674
continuing operations

Payment of property, plant and (6 990) - (6 990) (6 398) 592 33
equipment and intangible assets

Actual Amount on Comparable (10 003) - (10 003) (5737) 4 266

Basis as Presented in the

Budget and Actual

Comparative Statement

Reconciliation
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South African Human Rights Commission
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Accounting Policies

2022 2021
Note(s) ‘000 '000

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance
Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions
were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard
of GRAP.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual
financial statements, are disclosed below.

1.1 Presentation currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity. The
figures have been rounded off to the nearest R'000.

1.2 Going concern assumption

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as
a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

Due to the impact of Covid 19, assessment on expense, revenue, assets and liability is required to ensure that the South
African Human Rights Commission will continue to operate in the foreseeable future. In assessing the going concern
assumption the accounting executive has considered the impact of the grants cuts by National Treasury to the Commission.

1.3 Materiality

Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or collectively, influence the decisions or
assessments of users made on the basis of the financial statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission
or misstatement judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the information item, or a combination of both,
could be the determining factor.

Assessing whether an omission or misstatement could influence decisions of users, and so be material, requires consideration
of the characteristics of those users. The Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements states that
users are assumed to have a reasonable knowledge of government, its activities, accounting and a willingness to study the
information with reasonable diligence. Therefore, the assessment takes into account how users with such attributes could
reasonably be expected to be influenced in making and evaluating decisions.

1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates
which may be material to the annual financial statements. Judgements include decisions on property plant and equipment.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Management has made certain estimations and judgments with regards to the determination of estimated useful lives, residual
values and impairment assessments of items of property, plant and equipment, as discussed further in note 1.5
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
. it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
*  the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). if the
acquired item'’s fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life
Computer Equipment Straight-line

. Laptops and desktops 10-13
. Servers and Switches 17-22
Office Equipment Straight-line

. Printers and fridges etc 17-22
° Audiovisual and equipments and conferencing 17-20
Finance Lease Straight-line 3-5
Library Materials Straight-line 20-25
Furniture and fittings Straight-line

. Furniture and fittings 20-27
. Gazebo, Flags, Banners and Accessories 17-27
Motor vehicles Straight-line 12-17
Leasehold improvements Straight-line 5-10

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the entity expectations about the residual value
and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the entity revises
the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each peried is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.6 Intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either:
. is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of

whether the entity intends to do so; or
*  arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are

transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in
the form of a contract.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
° it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will

flow to the entity; and
. the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and supportable
assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of

the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured
at its fair value as at that date.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

An |ntang|ble asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.

there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

there is an ability to use or sell it.

it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential.

there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
asset.

. the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life
Computer software Straight-line 13-17
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1.6 Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets are derecognised:
. on disposal; or
*  when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of intangible assets is included in surplus or deficit when the asset is
derecognised (unless the Standard of GRAP on leases requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback).

1.7 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity's statement of
financial position.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums
or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life
of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
U cash;
® a residual interest of another entity; or
*  acontractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
*  deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
» exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

Initial recognition
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value [if subsequently measured at fair value).

The entity first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the entity
analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for each component separately. The entity accounts for
that part of a concessionary loan that is:

e asocial benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, where it
is the issuer of the loan; or

* non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes
and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
e  Financial instruments at fair value.
» Financial instruments at amortised cost

e Financial instruments at cost
All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.

Fair value measurement consideration

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the
entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the
transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange motivated by normal operating
considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the
instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual
markettransactions, the entity uses that technique.

The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.
It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic
methodologies for pricing financial instruments.

Periodically, an entity calibrates the valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market
transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available cbservable market
data.

Short term receivables and payables are not discounted where the initial credit period is granted or received is consistent with
terms used in the public sector, either through established practices or legislation.

Impairment of financial assets
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through surplus or deficit, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
reporting date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence of impairment of financial assets (such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor). If there is such evidence, the recoverable amount is
estimated and an impairment loss is recognised in accordance with GRAP 104,

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. When the receivable is
uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to the Statement of Financial Performance.

Impairment and gains and losses from subsequent measurement

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value shall be
recognised in surplus or defi cit. For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, again or loss is
recognised in surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the

amortisation process.
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset or a portion thereof is derecognised when the SAHRC realises the contractual rights to the benefits specified
in the contract, the rights expire, the SAHRC surrenders those rights or otherwise loses control of the contractual rights that
comprise the financial asset. On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the sum
of the proceeds receivable and any prior adjustment to reflect the fair value of the asset that had been reported in capital and
reserves is included in net surplus or deficit for the period.

If the entity neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the entity recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the entity retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the entity continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability or a part thereof is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or
expires. On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability, including related unamortised
costs, and the amount paid for it is included in net surplus or deficit for the period.

Fair value considerations

The fair values at which fi nancial instruments are carried at the reporting date have been determined using available market
values. Where market values are not available, fair values have been calculated by discounting expected future cash fiows at
prevailing interest rates. The fair values have been estimated using available market information and appropriate valuation
methodologies, but are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the NSF could realise in the normal course of business.
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair value due to the short-term trading cycle of these items.

Risk management of financial assets and liabilities

It is the policy of the entity to disclose information that enables the user of its financial statements to evaluate the nature and
extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the entity is exposed on the reporting date. Risks and exposure are
disclosed as follows:

Credit risk:

— Each class of financial instrument is disclosed separately.

— Maximum exposure to credit risk not covered by collateral is specified.
— Financial instruments covered by collateral are specified.

Liquidity risk:
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)

A maturity analysis for financial assets and liabilities that shows the remaining contractual maturities. Liquidity risk is managed
by ensuring that all assets are reinvested at maturity at competitive interest rates in relation to cash flow requirements.
Liabilities are managed by ensuring that all contractual payments are met on a timeous basis and, if required, additional new
arrangements are established at competitive rates to ensure that cash flow requirements are met. A maturity analysis for
financial liabilities (where applicable) that shows the remaining undiscounted contractual maturities is disclosed in note 27 to
the annual financial statements.

1.8 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance
of the liability.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.9 Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their
costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

The carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or related services are
rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

1.10 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.
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1.10 Employee benefits {(continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

*  wages, salaries and social security contributions;

. short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the
absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;

. bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service; and

. non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphones) for current employees.

The Commission recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a
present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the contribution payable
to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service:
. as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for service before the reporting date, an entity recognises that excess as an asset
(prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a

cash refund; and
. as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset.

1.11 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
. the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and
. a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each pericd to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
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1.11 Provisions and contingencies (continued)

A constructlve obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:
has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of an activity/operating unit concerned;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being

terminated;
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented; and
o has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:
° necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
. not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity
After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are
subsequently measured at the higher of;
» the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
¢ the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 24,
1.12 Commitments

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.
Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial

statements, if both the following criteria are met:
. Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or

building maintenance services); and
. Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity — therefore salary
commitments relating to employment caontracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.
1.13 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
Interest, royalties and dividends

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.

Administrative fee is recognised as revuenue over the period during which the service is performed.

1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue from non exhange transaction constitutes transfer receipt from Department of Justice and Constitutional
Development.
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1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Recognition
An inflow of government grant payment from a non-exchange transaction is recognised as revenue.

Donor funds received are managed by the Commission in order to enable facilitation of projects. The funds are recognised as a
liability or income based on the nature of donation agreement.

1.15 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means:
*  overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and
+  expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with
the purpose of the main division.

Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for in line with all relating requirements, including, but not limited to, ruling Legislation,
Regulations, Frameworks, Circulars, Instruction Notes, Practice Notes, Guidelines etc (as applicable).

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in
the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.16 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for in line with all relating requirements, including, but not limited to, ruling
Legislation, Regulations, Frameworks, Circulars, Instruction Notes, Practice Notes, Guidelines etc (as applicable).

All expenditure relating to fruitiess and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.17 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -

(a) this Act; or

{b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or

(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires
the following (effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end
and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In
such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of
updating the note to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.
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1.17 Irregular expenditure (continued)

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the
irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate
steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting
officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the
financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not
been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant
programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the

irregular expenditure register.
1.18 Budget information

The Commission is typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent),
which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources were abtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance outcome
objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2021/04/01 to 2022/03/31.

The annual financial statements and the budget are not in the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the
budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

The annual financial statements and the budget are not on the same basis of accounting therefore a reconciliation between the
statement of financial performance and the budget have been included in the annual financial statements. Refer to note .

1.19 Related parties

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant influence
over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Related party fransaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control over
those policies.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those
charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such
functions.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that
person in their dealings with the entity.

Only transactions with related parties at arm's length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.

1.20 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
¢ those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date);
and
. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting

date).

30



South African Human Rights Commission
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Accounting Policies

1.20 Events after reporting date (continued)

The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date once
the event occurred.

The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate cannot
be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of the financial statements.
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2022 2021
‘000 ‘000

2. New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current
financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

2.2 Standards and Interpretations early adopted

The entity has chosen to early adopt the following standards and interpretations:

Standard!/ Interpretation:

GRAP 25 (as revised). Employee Benefits

iGRAP 7 (as revised): Limit on defined benefit asset,
minimum funding requirements and their interaction
GRAP 104 (as revised): Financial Instruments
iGRAP 21: The Effect of Past Decisions on Materiality

2.3 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

Effective date:

Years beginning on or
after

01 April 2099

01 April 2099

01 April 2025
01 April 2023

Expected impact:

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for
the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2022 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation:

Guideline: Guideline on Accounting for Landfill Sites
Guideline: Guideline on the Application of Materiality to
Financial Statements

GRAP 2020: Improvements to the standards of GRAP 2020

GRAP 1 (amended). Presentation of Financial Statements

Effective date:

Years beginning on or
after

01 April 2099

01 April 2099

01 April 2023

01 April 2023

Expected impact:

Unlikely there will be a
material impact
Unlikely there will be a
material impact
Unlikely there will be a
material impact
Unlikely there will be a
material impact
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3. Property, plant and equipment

2022 2021
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation  depreciation Valuation  depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
Finance Lease 1158 (830) 328 3573 (2 563) 1010
Furniture and fittings 4 647 {1 570) 3077 4943 (2 447) 2 496
Motor vehicles 9209 (2 063) 7 146 7 265 (2123) 5142
Office equipment 2455 (816) 1639 2350 (757) 1593
IT equipment 10 280 (2 558} 7722 8602 (2 279) 6323
Leasehold improvements 522 (287) 235 806 (413) 393
Other property, plant and equipment 1515 (788) 727 1514 {735} 779
Total 29786 {8 912) 20 874 29 053 {11 317) 17 736
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2022
Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Total
balance
Finance lease 1010 - (63) (619) 328
Furniture and fittings 2 496 1100 (347) (172) 3077
Motor vehicles 5142 2949 (375) (570) 7146
Office equipment 1593 234 (79} (109) 1839
Computer equipment 6323 2114 {160) (555) 7722
Leasehold improvements 393 - (96) (62) 235
Library Materials 779 1 - (53) 727
17 736 6 398 {1120} (2 140) 20 874
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Figures in Rand thousand

3.  Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2021

Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Total
balance
Finance lease 1835 - (88) (737) 1010
Furniture and fittings 2221 465 (51) (139) 2 496
Motor vehicles 4092 1798 (372) (376) 5142
Office equipment 1693 17 (11) (106) 1593
Computer equipment 4 582 2197 (12) {444) 6323
Leasehold improvements 434 22 - {63) 393
Library Materials 831 1 - (53) 779
15 688 4 500 (534) (1918) 17736
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4. Intangible assets

2022 2021
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation  amortisation Valuation  amortisation
and and
accumufated accumulated
impairment impairment
Computer software 2 662 (1072) 1590 2 662 (934) 1728
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2022
P [+] Amortisati Total
balance
Computer software 1728 {138} 1 590
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2021
Opening Amortisation Total
balance
1866 (138) 1728

Computer software

All intangible assets acquired by Commission are computirised software which consist of Sage 300 for HR Payroll, CRM Sage Software for Legal Service, Sage Evolution for accounting

purpose, etc
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5. Operating lease
Current assets 19 117
Non-current liabilities (1 046) (345)
Current liabilities (42) (43)
(1 069) (271)
Operating lease expense consist of:
Head office 5437 15 952
Provincial offices 4103 3353
9 540 19 305
Terms and conditions
(i) All the leases are operating for an agreed period. i.e 12, 36, 60 months, within
an option of renew.
(ii) All operating leases excluding Telkom ( VPN) are subjected to an escalation ranging
between 7% pa and 10% pa
At the reporting date the Commission had outstanding commitments under the
operating leases relating to head office and provincial office building which fall due as follows.
Due within one year 8 350 1412
Due within two year to five years 23303 1200
31653 2612
6. Prepayments
Pro-forma invoices 5.1 62 57
Subscriptions and annual licenses 5.2 752 595
814 652
6.1 The pro-forma invoices as part of the prepayment emanates from suppliers that require payment in advance and

during the reporting date, the Commission had not yet received the service or goods.

6.2 Subscription and annual licenses, the increase year on year is due to the acquisition of additional software thus
improving the ability of the Commission to work remotely, this includes, such as FortiClient VPN and Microsoft Teams

7. Inventories

Consumable stores 155

103

8. Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade debtors 435

90

Trade and other receivables

As of 31 March 2022, trade and other receivables of 434 557 (2021: 90 380) were provided for.
The ageing of these loans is as follows:

3 to 6 months 435

90
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9. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand 57 54
Bank balances 483 825
Short-term deposits- call account 56 774 57 921
57 314 58 800

Cash on hand relates to petty cash balance as presented and at year end the aggregated head office and provincial petty cash
bank account retained a balance of R 56,593.76 (2021 R 54,115.90)

The Commission's daily activities are financed through the main bank account which retained a balance of R 482,969.02 ( 2021
R 824,722.15)

Short term deposit as disclosed relates to the call account which the Commission deposits the short term investment to attract
variable interest income that is linked to the repo rate as reported by Reserve Bank. Refer to 15.1

10. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 118 240
- in second to fifth year inclusive - 119
118 359
less: future finance charges 4) (28)
Present value of minimum lease payments 114 331

Present value of minimum lease payments due

- within one year 114 217

- in second to fifth year inclusive - 114
114 331

Non-current liabilities - 114

Current liabilities 114 217
114 331

It is entity policy to lease certain equipment under finance leases.

The average lease term was 3 years and the average effective borrowing rate was 10% (2021: 10%).

Interest rates are linked to prime at the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangements have been

entered into for contingent rent.

The entity's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets..

11. Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Open Society Initiative for West Africa 222 932

ZENEX Foundation 96 100

Allan Gray Orbis Foundation - 100
318 1132
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11. Unspent conditional grants and receipts (continued)
Movement during the year
Balance at the beginning of the year 1132 982
Additions during the year 271 200
Amount refunded to the donor (710) -
Income recognition during the year (375) (50)
318 1132
Open Society Initiative for West Africa
Balance at the beginning of the year 932 982
Additions during the year - -
Amount refunded back to the donor (710} -
Income recognition during the year - (50)
222 932

The South African Human Rights Commission has received conditional grants from the Open Society Initiative for West Africa
(OSIWA) for the seminar on the African which will be hosted in June. The conditional grant will be spent on travel,
accommondation, venue hire and all the expenses relating to the African seminar.

ZENEX Foundation

Balance at the beginning of the year 100 -
Additions during the year - 100
Income recognition during the year (4) -

96 100

The South African Human Rights Commission has received conditional grants from the board of trustees of ZENEX Foundation
towards the right to read and write compaign. The Zenex Foundation is an independent grant-maker investing in mathematics
and language education in South Africa since 1995

Allan Gray Orbis Foundation

Balance at the beginning of the year 100 -
Additions during the year - 100
Income recognition during the year (100) -

- 100

The South African Human Rights Commission has received a conditional grant from the Allan Gray Orbis Foundation
Endowment towards the right to read and write compaign. In seeking to improve the overall context in which the Allan Gray
Orbis Foundation operates, the Endowment additionally supports initiatives that address structural barriers in education which
hamper employability.

38



South African Human Rights Commission
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2022 2021
‘000 '000
12. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2022
Opening Additions Utilised Total
Balance during the
year
Provision for leave pay 7 150 2143 (998) 8 295
Provision for performance bonus 680 - (680) -
7 830 2143 (1678) 8 295
Reconciliation of provisions - 2021
Opening Additions Utilised Reversed Total
Balance during the during the
year year
Provision for leave pay 6 346 - (401) 1205 7 150
Provision for performance bonus 2070 680 - (2 070) 680
8416 680 (401) (865) 7 830

Provision for leave is based on leave days accrued to year end for each employee as per Human Resource policy

The Commission's performance management policy entails the percentage that should be allocated to the performance bonus
in relation to the budgeted employee cost for that cycle, as published by National Treasury in the Compensation of Employees
guidelines.

13. Employee benefits

13th Cheque accrual 1216 1182

Employee benefits relates to employee's 13th cheque accrued and incurred in the current year R 1,215,930.05 (2021 R
1,182,030.51)

The Commission's 13th cheque accrual cycle as part of the employee benefits runs from January to December and at year
end, only three months of the 13th Cheqgue is accrued to 31 March.

14. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 8 247 5231
Accrued expense 134 1451
8 381 6 682

Trade payables significant increase in comparinson to the previous financial period is as a results of bulk travel expenditure
that occurred in the fourth quarter.

Covid 19 ease of regulations has resulted in moving away from digitalised opeartion to one on one engagement which attracts
expenditure such as flights, accommodation, venue, shuttle, catering etc which contributed to an increase in payable liability in
comparison to prior year.

15. Revenue

Administrative Income 236 4336
Interest received - investment 1486 1333
Government grants & subsidies 195 031 191739
Donation Income 375 50

197 128 197 458
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15. Revenue (continued)
The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services
are as follows:
Administrative Income 236 4336
Interest received - investment 1486 1333
1722 5669

Administrative income related to mainly other income derived from the Information Regulator rental income as part of the sub
leased space, the proceeds received from sales of motor vehicles, other income accrued as a results of unpaid leave from
employees when they resigned and insurance income for the lost assets.

Interest received from investment relates to the short term deposit made to the call account to attract interest income at
avariable interest rate linked to repo rate.

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as

follows:

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 196 031 191739

Donation Income 375 50
195 406 191 789

16. Donation Income

Open Society Initiatives For West Africa - 50

Allan Gray Orbis Foundation 100 -

United Nations International Children's Emergency Fund 271 -

ZENEX Foundation 4 -

375 50

The donation income emanates from the deferred liability as a result of conditional donations received by the Commission for a
specific project, therefore, in application of GRAP standard, the deferred liability should be reduced through realising the
revenue and writting off the expenses in the statement of financial performance in responding to the requirements of the
conditional donation received.
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17. Employee related costs
Basic Salary 99 189 91791
Performance Bonus ( Net movement) 3449 871
Medical aid - company contributions 4693 4 535
Unemployment Insurance Fund (UIF) 415 344
Pension Fund Contributions 9 196 9 316
Non pensionable contributions 10 574 9 956
Other Short term benefit 4 851 3714
13th Cheques 4770 4 969
Car allowance 630 731
Housing benefits and allowances 2376 2518
140 143 128 745
Number of employees
Permanent employees 158 160
Contractors 64 50
Internship - 1
222 211
Movements during the year:
Total number of employees at the beggining of the year 211 209
Resignations/pensions/internships ended (69) (62)
Appointments/internships 80 4
222 211
HR Bursaries
Annual Remuneration 243 345

The employee bursaries is offered to permanant employees in application of the HR policy and employees that qualifies for the
bursary offers their employment services in payment of the bursaries for a specific period as per the signed bursary agreement.

18. Finance costs

Finance leases 28 69

Total interest expense, calculated using the effective interest rate, on financial instruments not at fair value through surplus or
deficit amounted to R 27,8937.94 (2021: R 68,979.86).
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19. General expenses
Advertising 115 23
Auditors remuneration ( External) 19.1 2611 1793
Bank charges 85 97
Cleaning 218 395
Computer expenses 65 213
Consulting and professional fees 96 112
Lease and hire 1613 1444
Insurance 806 605
Conferences and seminars 5 30
Municipality service 19.2 2250 4583
Motor vehicle expenses 99 126
Motor vehicle expense (Fuel) 607 318
Placement fees 19.3 219 901
Postage and courier 39 107
Printing and stationery 363 335
Repairs and maintenance 122 73
Security (Guarding of municipal property) 1798 1611
Software expenses - 182
Staff welfare 246 115
Subscriptions and membership fees 780 341
Telephone and fax 2 509 2169
Relocation expense 19.4 2490 -
Training 627 970
Workmen's compensation 127 125
Relocation expense 146 682
Operating expense 19.5 26 067 13 675

44 103 31025

19.1 The Auditors remuneration fee increase is due to the 2020/21 audit planning starting later than the year before,
resulting in charges being received in the 2021/22 year, as well an IT audit was performed which did not take place in
the previous year.

19.2  The Municipality services fee decrease is attributable to the Head Office move into significantly smaller premises.

19.3  The placement fee decrease is as a result a Human Capital Management Strategy project that took place in 2020/21
but not in the current year.

19.4  The relocation fee refers to the Head Office move, which includes storage of assets whilst renovations in the new
premises were underway.

19.5  Operating expenditure increased due to the additional activities undertaken utilising surplus funds from the previous
year as approved by National Treasury, including the July Unrest Hearing and the Whistleblowing Summit

20. Auditors' remuneration ( External)

Fees 2611 1793
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21. Cash generated from operations
Surplus 110 16 720
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 2278 2 056
Loss on disposal of assets 926 271
Donation income (375) (50)
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals 1649 (641)
Changes in working capital:
Inventories (52) 67
Receivables from exchange transactions (345) (1
Prepayments (162) 77
Payables from exchange transactions 1693 1947
Unspent conditional grants and receipts (814) 50
Employee benefit 34 (114)
Provision for leave accrued 1145 804
Provision for performance bonus (680) (1 390)
5407 19 796
22. Financial instruments disclosure
Categories of financial instruments
2022
Financial assets
At fair value Total
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions ( Refer to note 8) 435 435
Cash and cash equivalents 57 314 57 314
57 749 57 749
Financial liabilities
At fair value Total
Payables from exchange transactions ( Refer to note 14) 8 379 8379
Employee benefits ( Refer to note 12 & 13) 9511 9511
Finance lease liability obligation ( Refer to note 10) 114 114
18 004 18 004
2021
Financial assets
At fair value Total
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 90 90
Cash and cash equivalents 58 800 58 800
58 890 58 890
Financial liabilities
At fair value Total
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions ( Refer to note 14) 6 682 6 682
Employee benefits ( Refer to note 12 & 13) 8332 8332
Finance lease liability obligation ( Refer to note 10) 217 217
15 231 15231
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23. Commitments
Authorised operational and capital expenditure
Already contracted for but not provided for
. Acquisition of PPE 23.1 1297 3808
. Authorised operating expenditure 23.2 7610 9108
o Operating lease expenditure 23.3 - 4422
8 907 17 338
Total operational commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for 8 907 12 916
Total commitments
Total commitments
Authorised operational expenditure 8 907 12 916

This committed expenditure relates to open purchase orders issued to suppliers for goods and services not yet received as at
31 March 2022 and will be financed by available funds. Due to the Covid-19 pandemic ease of regulations, certain targets were
easily addressed earlier.

231

23.2

23.3

Purchase orders relating to the acquisition of furniture and fitting for the new building, purchased but not yet received
at year end.

Other long overdue purchase orders other than purchase orders of capital expenditure relating to operational
expenditure of day to day activities in addressing the organasational mandate.

Operating lease agreement between Mudoto Properties Proprietary Limited and South African Human
Rights Commission for Head Office building signed on the 18th March 2021, therefore, at reporting date, the
Commission was committed to an amount of R 4,422,072.00 for the next financial period.

24. Contingencies

Categories of contingent liability

Estimated cash surplus per National Treasury Instruction No 6 of 2021/20 241 10 804 33 000

241

The SAHRC will be applying for the retention of its accumulated surplus as at the financial year ending 31 March 2022
in terms of section 53(3) of the PFMA from National Treasury. The surplus is significantly made up of the fact that in
the updated surplus calculation formula of 2020/21, the inclusion of commitments is no longer catered for.
Commitments at 31 March 2022 for the 2021/22 year show a balance of R 8.9m. A portion of this is due to the halt of
tender processes advised by "National Treasury in February 2022.

Contingent assets

The Commission has no contingent assets at reporting date.
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25. Related parties
Department of Public Works
Information Regulator
Department of Justice and Constitutional Development and related parties that falls under the department's portfolio
Parliament
Other entity within the Justice Portfolio Legal Aid South Africa
Public Protector
Guardian's Fund
President's Fund
Special Investigating Unit
Criminal Asset Recovery Account
Third Party Funds
Office of the Chief Justice
National Prosecuting Authority
Rules Board for Courts of Law
South African Boards of Sheriffs
South African Law Reform Commission

Council of Debt Collectors
Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties

Department of public works 251 195 214
Department of justice and constitutional Development 25.2 195 031 191 739
Information regulator 25.3 111 4514

25.1 Related party transactions to the value of R 194,584.98 (2021: R 214,340.41) was incurred in the current financial
year. Related party transactions emanates from municipal services for Kwazulu Natal and Northern Cape Provincial

offices.

25.2  The following amount was the annual allocation received from National Treasury via the Department of Justice and
Constitutional Development R 195,031,000 (2021: R 191,739,000) as disclosed in note 14.

28.3  The Information Regulator and the Commission have entered into a sub lease agreement for rental of office space and
the amount aggregated to R 110,735.02 (2021: 4,513,693.88) relates to the transaction for rental income.
For remuneration of Key Management positions refer to note 26 below.

Relationship:
Senior managements: List all the senior managers ( CEQ , COO, CFO, Head of Strategy all listed under paragraph 25)

Remuneration of management
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26, Members' emoluments

Executive
2022
Salary Bonuses and Expenses Provident  Termination Acting 3G and Total
performance allowance contributions leave payout allowance cellphone
payments and backpay allowance

Chief Executive Officer 1189 99 545 148 48 - 56 2087
Chief Financial Officer: 438 - 245 47 - - 25 755
Chief Financial Officer { Contract) 180 - - - - - 3 183
Head of Corporate Services 498 - 270 62 115 - 25 970
Head of Strategic Support and Governance 748 118 343 94 75 - 37 1415
Chief Audit Executive 636 48 344 79 64 - 13 1183
Provincial Manager: Kwazulu Natal 645 48 349 81 &7 - 37 1227
Provincial Manager: Mpumalanga 748 118 343 94 75 - 37 1415
Chief Operation Officer 822 130 377 103 80 - 42 1554
Provincial Manager: Western Cape 635 109 291 79 66 - 13 1193
Provincial Manager: Limpopo 748 118 343 94 75 - 37 1415
Provincial Manager: Northemn Cape 716 115 327 87 74 - 40 1359
Provincial Manager: Gauteng Province 684 142 314 86 70 - 37 1333
Provincial Manager: Free State 845 40 349 81 67 - 46 1228
Provincial Manager: Eastern Cape 709 122 179 90 43 - 24 1167
Operations Manager 684 - 371 86 53 37 1231
Provincial Manager: North West 635 8 344 79 153 - 37 1256
Acting Provincial Manager: Eastern Cape 724 - 248 90 - 129 14 1205
Acting Head of Corporate Service: L Zulu 724 - 248 90 - 60 14 1136
Acting Head of LSU: PK Ka-Siboto 589 - 211 74 - 114 - 988

13 396 1215 6041 1645 1126 303 574 24 300
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26, Members' emoluments {continued)

2021
Salary Bonuses and Expenses Provident  Termination Acting 3G and Total
performance allowance contributions leave payout allowance cellphone
payment and backpay allowance

Chief Executive Officer 1187 o 544 149 - - 43 2022
Acting Chief Financial Officer (Dec-March 2019} 665 - 202 83 - 91 14 1055
Head of Corporate Services 747 - 405 93 - - 24 1269
Head of Strategic Support and Governance 747 62 343 93 - - 24 1269
Chief Executive Auditor 635 - 292 81 - 38 - 1046
Provincial Manager: Kwazulu Natal 644 54 309 80 - - 24 1111
Provincial Manager: Mpumalanga 748 63 343 92 - - 24 1271
Chief Operational Officer 821 68 376 103 - - 29 1397
Provincial Manager: Eastem Cape 498 55 228 62 79 - 18 940
Provincial Manager: Limpopo 747 62 343 93 - - 24 1269
Provincial Manager: Northern Cape 715 60 328 88 - - 24 1215
Provincial Manager; Gauteng 683 57 313 86 - - 24 1163
Provincial Manager: Free State 644 - 349 80 - - - 1073
Provincial Manager: Westem Cape 157 - 71 20 - - - 248
Operations Manager 683 - 370 86 - - 24 11863
Acting Provincial Manager: Eastern Cape 717 60 158 89 - 38 13 1075
Provincial Manager: North West 634 - 344 79 - - 24 1081
Acting Head of Advocom 741 62 163 93 - 26 14 1099
Acting Provincial Manager Western Cape 717 60 158 89 - 83 - 1107
Acting Head Of Communication 646 - 196 80 - 26 - 948
Acting Program Manager 521 - 158 65 - 73 1 818

14 298 762 5993 1784 79 375 348 23 639
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26. Members' emoluments (continued)
Non-executive
2022
Salary Bonus and Provident Other benefits Total
performance contributions
bonuses
Adv BC Majola 863 - - 623 1486
Adv .F.Chohen 549 - 69 307 925
Adv. AH Gaum 671 - - 485 1156
Ms P.Ntuli 502 - 63 267 832
Ms MA Makwetla 168 - - 107 275
Adv. JB Malatji 671 56 - 429 1156
Mr AC Nissen 799 - - 28 827
Mr J Sibanyoni 799 - - 28 827
5022 56 132 2274 7 484
2021
Salary Bonuses and Provident Other benefits Total
performance contributions
bonuses
Adv .B.C.Majola 857 - - 645 1502
Adv AH Gaum 666 - - 499 1165
Adv MS Ameermia 563 60 69 399 1091
Ms M.A. Makwetla 443 55 - 305 803
BJ Malatji 666 55 - 443 1164
Mr AC Nissen 794 - - 36 830
Mr JB Sibanyoni 794 - - 36 830
4783 170 69 2363 7 385
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27. Prior period errors
During the year under review, management noted that the 2021 financial year provision of leave accrued was calculated
incorrectly based on the basic salaries rather than the total cost to company for all employees above level 10, therefore,

management took a decision to rectify the error restrospectively and adjust accumulated surplus and provision for leave
accrued accordingly with the error incurred.

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:

Statement of financial position
Provision for leave accrued. - (1196)
Closing Accumulated Surplus or Deficit - 1196

Statement of financial performance
Employee Costs - 1196

28. Risk management
Financial risk management
Liquidity risk

The entity's risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The entity
only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument 2022 2021

Receivable from exchange transactions 435 90
Prepayments 820 652
Cash and cash eqivalents 57 314 58 800

29. Going concern and Covid 19

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The Commission's ability to continue as a going concern depends on the continued support of government through means of
annual appropriation.

We have performed an assessment of the South African Human Rights Commission ability to continue as a going concern.
Based on the cash flow forecast linked to the MTEF allocation for foreseeable future, there is no uncertainty that the
Commission would not operate within the next 12 months. We are not aware of any new material non-compliance with statutory
or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the Commission.

The impact of COVID-19 on accounting standards that require the assessment at the end of each reporting period of whether
there is either objective evidence that assets are impaired or if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of a non-financial asset may not be recoverable, was assessed based on information available as at 31 March 2022.
COVID-19 is an unprecedented challenge for humanity and for the economy globally and at the date of this report its effects
are subject to significant levels of uncertainty. The impact of COVID-19 is expected to be felt on the Commission objectives to
address the operational mandate. At this stage, there is no uncertainty identified about the Commission ability to continue as a
going concern.
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29. Going concern and Covid 19 {(continued)

The pandemic restriction and disruption on operations and supply chains as a result of control measures implemented to
control the spread of the virus, may result in a significant increase in operational expenditure and budget cuts implemented as
a results of contraction in GDP. We believe that the Commission has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for
the foreseeable future and the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. We have satisfied
ourselves that the Commission is in a sound financial position and that it has government financial support to meet its
foreseeable cash requirements. We are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the Commission.

30. Events after the reporting date

There were no events that occurred after the reporting date for the year under review.

Covid-19 pandemic

The SAHRC has been able to maintain its operations under the lockdown restrictions and regulations announced by the South
African government since the Covid19 pandemic hit the country. Furthermore, even with the revised risk adjustment for the

economy and country there are no material matters after the reporting date for the SAHRC.

31. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance as previcusly reported 116 -
Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure identified - current - 116
Less amount resolved - -
Closing balance 116 116

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is presented inclusive of VAT

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure to the value of R 0.00 (2021: R 116,217.74) was incurred in the current year. The fruitless
and wasteful expenditure emanated from late submission of Vat payable to SARS as a results of directive impose on the
Commission for non residence suppliers. The late submission of Vat attracted interest and penalties which qualifies to be
disclosed as a non compliance.

32. lrregular expenditure

Opening balance 8701 6310
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 10 794 2391
Less: Amounts not recoverable (not condoned) - -

19 495 8701

Irregular expenditure to the value of R 10,794,481.30 (2021: R 2,391,133.86) was incurred in the current year. Irregular
expenditure emanates from non-compliance with National Treasury Note 8 of 2007 and Treasury Regulation 16A 9.1 (d) and
16A 6.3 (b.)

Irregular expenditure incurred is mainly due to the non-adherence to policies and procedures and investigations by the
Commission is yet to be conducted to determine the internal control weaknesses, which will then be strengthened with
appropriate corrective action. Consequence management is yet to be implemented where applicable to ensure action is taken
against officials who caused the irregular expenditure concerned.

The Commission has written to National Treasury requesting condonation of the irregular expenditure reflected above on the
opening balance and is still awaiting a response therefore none of the expenditure had been condoned as at year end. No
disciplinary proceedings had been taken, since the irregular expenditure did not warrant such action.

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification

Current year 10 794 2391
Prior years 8 701 6310
19 495 8 701
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32. Irregular expenditure (continued)

Details of irregular expenditure not condoned
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings
None Not condoned by Accounting Officer after the
expenditure is incurred.

Details of irregular expenditure condoned
Condoned by (condoning authority)
None Condoned by the Accounting Officer after the
expenditure is incurred

Details of irregular expenditure recoverable (not condoned)

None -

Details of irregular expenditure not recoverable (not condoned)

None -

33. Budget differences

Budget Reconciliation per GRAP 24

A reconciliation between the actual amounts on a comparable basis as presented in the statement of comparison of budget
and actual amounts and the actual amounts in the cash flow statement for the period ended 31 March 2022 is presented
below. The financial statements and budget documents are prepared for the same period. There is a basis difference: the

budget is prepared on a cash basis and the financial statements on the accrual basis.

Heading Operating Financing Investing Total
Actual amount on comparable basis as presented in the 4 266 - - 4 266
budget and actual comparative statement

Basis differences 5752 (495) (6 398) (1141)
Timing differences - - - -
Entity differences - - - -
Actual amount in the cash flow statement 10 018 (495) (6 398) 3125

Differences between budget and actual amounts basis of preparation and presentation

The budget and the accounting bases differ. The annual financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis using a
classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance. The annual financial statements are
for the fiscal period from 2021/04/01 to 2022/03/31. The annual financial statements differ from the budget, which is approved

on the cash basis.

(i) Administrative fees

These receipts were due to the last few months of municipal costs from the Information Regulator, who rented a space from the

Commission, which ended on 31 March 2021.

(i) Interest received- Investment

Interest received was higher than anticipated with a higher bank balance during the year as well as an increase in interest

rates.

(iii) Personnel
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33. Budget differences (continued)
The higher personnel costs are attributable to:

- monitors that were engaged on a contract basis, but budgeted for in the provincial operational budgets,
- the extra assistance engaged for the special projects of the July 2021 Unrest Hearing as well as the first Whistleblowing

Summit.
(iv) Finance lease payments and finance cost

The lower finance costs are due to finance leases not being renewed or replaced on expiry. Specifically with computer
equipment (laptops) which were then purchased outright.

(v) Lease rental on operating lease

Due to the extended time taken in ensuring the readiness of the Head Office premises, the landlord elected to give a discount
on the first few months rental charge.

(vi) General expenses

As mentioned in Personnel expenditure, the monitors that were engaged were budgeted for in provincial operational budgets,
however paid through the payroll.

(vii) Payment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The underspend of 2021/22 fixed assets budget expenditure was offset by the late delivery on purchase orders from the
2020/21 year, specifically in the case of motor vehicles and computer equipment (laptops) purchased that couldn’t be delivered

due to the COVID19 Pandemic lockdown rules. Projects not finalised in 2021/22 are: The upgrade on the current General
Ledger system and the digitisation project.

(viii) Finance lease payments

The lower finance lease payments are due to finance leases not being renewed or replaced on expiry. Specifically with
computer equipment (laptops) which were then purchased outright.
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